






 
 
 
 

October 3, 2016 
 
 
 
Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
Sierra County Office of Education 
PO Box 955 
Loyalton, CA 
96118 
mgrant@spjusd.org 
 
 
Dear Superintendent Grant: 
 
It is a great pleasure to inform you that the State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
has approved the Sierra County Office of Education’s Local Control and Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) for the 2016-17 school year, pursuant to California Education Code (EC) 
Section 52070.5(d).   
 
As you know, the Superintendent is required to review and approve the LCAP or the 
annual update to an existing LCAP prior to the approval of the LEA’s adopted budget 
per EC Section 1622(b)(1)(C). You will receive an additional notification when the 
corresponding budget is approved. 
 
On behalf of the Superintendent, we would like to thank you and your staff for your 
efforts towards continuing to increase student achievement and opportunities for every 
student to have a world-class education. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this subject, please contact me by phone at        
916-319-0303 or by e-mail at jbreshears@cde.ca.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jeff Breshears, Director 
Local Agency Systems Support Office 
 
JB:jb 
 

mailto:jbreshears@cde.ca.gov�


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through September

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 239,007.00 239,007.00 200,235.33 30,872.24 7,899.43 Teachers Salaries

1120 220.00 220.00-Certificated Substitutes

1200 63,839.00 63,839.00 54,522.99 6,068.11 3,247.90 Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 170,833.00 170,833.00 128,961.99 45,140.88 3,269.87-Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 473,679.00 473,679.00 383,720.31 82,301.23 7,657.46 

2100 91,496.00 91,496.00 59,649.57 11,777.05 20,069.38 Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 22,358.00 22,358.00 8,903.37 2,567.26 10,887.37 Classified Support Salaries

2300 101,356.00 101,356.00 75,475.80 25,248.60 631.60 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 131,117.00 131,117.00 100,077.79 31,038.77 .44 Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 13,638.00 13,638.00 470.00 13,168.00 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 359,965.00 359,965.00 244,106.53 71,101.68 44,756.79 

3101 59,287.00 59,287.00 47,762.46 10,182.39 1,342.15 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 1,650.00 1,650.00 508.32 56.48 1,085.20 STRS Classified Positions

3202 59,611.00 59,611.00 44,603.01 13,340.59 1,667.40 PERS Classified Positions

3302 21,633.00 21,633.00 14,654.96 4,294.12 2,683.92 OASDI Classified Positions

3311 6,234.00 6,234.00 5,061.78 1,088.24 83.98 Medicare Certificated Position

3312 5,157.00 5,157.00 3,485.98 1,013.16 657.86 Medicare Classified Positions

3401 94,367.00 94,367.00 80,297.91 13,881.49 187.60 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 59,571.00 59,571.00 46,618.11 15,594.93 2,642.04-Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 329.00 329.00 191.88 41.15 95.97 SUI Certificated

3502 249.00 249.00 121.97 35.27 91.76 SUI Classified

3601 881.00 881.00 12,955.05 2,785.11 14,859.16-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 1,590.00 1,590.00 8,921.25 2,592.78 9,924.03-Workers' Compensation Classifi

3902 6,920.00 6,920.00 13,840.50 6,920.50-Golden Handshake-Class

Total for Object 3000 317,479.00 317,479.00 265,182.68 78,746.21 26,449.89-

4100 410.00 410.00 410.00 Approved Textbooks Core Curric

4200 444.00 444.00 444.00 Library and Reference Material

4300 23,277.00 23,277.00 8,155.56 2,789.81 12,331.63 Materials and Supplies

4320 2,972.00 2,972.00 2,972.00 Custodial Grounds Supplies

4330 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Office Supplies

4350 5,500.00 5,500.00 2,234.36 15.64 3,250.00 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 9,561.00 9,561.00 547.38 2,909.22 6,104.40 Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 43,164.00 43,164.00 10,937.30 5,714.67 26,512.03 

5100 42,000.00 42,000.00 41,709.94 2,174.26 1,884.20-Subagreements for Services

5200 23,280.00 23,280.00 6,269.18 2,938.88 14,071.94 Travel and Conference

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 3, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2016  8:15AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3902
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2016/17Balances through September

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

5300 18,370.00 18,370.00 551.25 9,930.25 7,888.50 Dues and Membership

5400 9,300.00 9,300.00 8,191.00 1,109.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 2,660.84 339.16 6,200.00 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 2,600.00 303.10 89.36 2,207.54 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5801 25,500.00 25,500.00 1,000.00 24,500.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 500.00 Legal Publications

5805 613.00 613.00 100.00 513.00 Personnel Expense

5806 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,296.40 203.60 .00 Other Services & Fees

5810 444,507.00 444,507.00 105,348.56 49,848.72 289,309.72 Contracted Services

5899 3,913.39 236.50 4,149.89-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 1,600.00 1,600.00 302.65 1,297.35 Communications

Total for Object 5000 579,970.00 579,970.00 163,455.31 73,951.73 342,562.96 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 30,300.00 30,300.00 30,300.00 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 60,332.00 60,332.00 .00 .00 60,332.00 

7141 27,582.00 27,582.00 27,582.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 27,582.00 27,582.00 .00 .00 27,582.00 

482,953.35 1,862,171.00 1,862,171.00 1,067,402.13 311,815.52 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 80,000.00 80,000.00 80,000.00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 13,360.00 13,360.00 13,360.00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

93,360.00 93,360.00 93,360.00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

576,313.35 1,955,531.00 1,955,531.00 1,067,402.13 311,815.52 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2017, Period = 3, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2016  8:15AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=86883&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619






SCOE  
 Minutes 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  
SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

September 13, 2016 
Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118 

6 pm for Regular Session 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 President PATTY HALL called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
 PRESENT: Ms.  Patty Hall, President   
   Mr.  Mike Moore, Vice President  
    Mr.  Allen Wright, Clerk 
   Mr.  Tim Driscoll, Member  
   Ms.  Sharon Dryden, Member 
 
 ABSENT:     None     
 
 VACANT:     None 
     
 
C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA - DRISCOLL motioned for approval with the following changes:  

Action Item 1617-125, pulled Conflict of Interest and Consent Calendar, Item 2, pulled to be set aside 
for separate vote. MOORE seconded. 
5/0  

 
D. FLAG SALUTE 
 
E. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
1. Superintendent’s Report 

a. Negotiations Timeline - Dr. Grant requested that two alternate board members 
represent the Board at 9/20/16 meeting with SPTA as the current representatives are 
unavailable. WRIGHT and MOORE chosen as alternates with DRYDEN as a backup. 

b. Instructional Aide Vacancy, Loyalton High School, .66 FTE 
c. Collaborative for Education Excellence  
d. SARB Update- First meeting held in August, to plan and prepare to meet the needs of 

the whole family when truancy is an issue. 
e. Acceptance of Letter of Resignation of Sandra Anderson, Instructional Aide 
 
2. Business Report 

a. Account Object Summary-Balance 07/01/16 to 8/31/16 
 
3. Staff Reports (5 minutes) 
  
4. SPTA Report (5 minutes) 

 
5. Board Members’ Report (5 minutes) 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
September 13, 2016 

 
SCOE 

Minutes 

2 

 
6. Public Comment  

a. Current location – No comment. 
b. Videoconference location – No comment. 

 
F. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held August 9, 2016 

DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 
5/0 

 
2. Approval of Board Report - Checks Dated 08/01/2016 through 08/31/2016  

DRISCOLL/MOORE 
DRYDEN:  ABSTAIN 
4/0 
 

G. ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. New Business 
 

1617-25 Adoption of Resolution No. 16-002, Conflict of Interest Pulled awaiting Conflict 
 of Interest submission to and approval of Sierra County Board of Supervisors 
 

1617-26 Adoption of Resolution No. 16-003, Fiscal Year End 2015-2016 Budget 
 Revision  

TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE 
TRUSTEE DRYDEN  AYE 
TRUSTEE HALL  AYE 
TRUSTEE MOORE  AYE 
TRUSTEE WRIGHT  AYE 

 5/0 
 

1617-27 Adoption of Resolution No. 16-004, Adopting the Gann Limit  
WRIGHT/DRISCOLL 
TRUSTEE DRISCOLL AYE 
TRUSTEE DRYDEN  AYE 
TRUSTEE HALL  AYE 
TRUSTEE MOORE  AYE 
TRUSTEE WRIGHT  AYE 

 5/0 
 

1617-28 Adoption of Unaudited Actuals for Fiscal Year End June 30, 2016 
MOORE/DRISCOLL 
5/0 
 

1617-29 Approval of Smart Watt Inc., Prop 39 Five Year Expenditure Plan 
DRISCOLL/WRIGHT 
5/0 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
September 13, 2016 

 
SCOE 

Minutes 

3 

 
1617-30 Approval for Services Agreement with The OMNI Financial Group, Inc.  

MOORE/DRISCOLL 
5/0 

 
1617-31 Appointment of members of the Student Attendance Review Board  

 (Dr. Merrill M. Grant, chairman) as follows:  
Sierra County Sheriff, Tim Standley 
Jeff Bosworth, Sierra County Chief Probation Officer 
Chuck Henson, Sierra County Deputy Probation Officer, Alternate for Jeff Bosworth 
Rebecca Dunsing, Sierra County Deputy Probation Officer, Truancy Investigator, (Ex-Officio Member)  
J. Lon Cooper, Sierra County Public Defender 
Larry Allen, Sierra County District Attorney 
Lisa Botzler, Sierra County Child Protective Services 
Laurie Marsh, Sierra County Behavioral Health 
Kerstin Harrison, Parent Representative 
Danielle Williamson, Student/Parent Navigator, Sierra County Behavioral Health 
(Ed Code § 48321(a)(1 )(3) The school district representatives on the county school attendance review board shall be nominated 
by the governing boards of school districts and shall be appointed by the county superintendent of schools. All other persons 
and group representatives shall be appointed by the county board of education.)  

 DRISCOLL/MOORE 
 5/0 
 

1617-32 Business Manager Search Discussion  
 

 BOARD POLICIES AND ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS  
MOORE motioned to approve Items 1617-33 through 1617-38, excluding 
1617-35 
DRISCOLL seconded 
5/0 
 

1617-33 Approval of Board Policy 5116.1, minor revision as follows: 
Any student enrolled in a district school receiving Title I funds that has been identified for program 
improvement (PI), corrective action, or restructuring. (20 USC 6316) 

 
1617-34 Approval of Administrative Regulation 5116.1, Intradistrict Open Enrollment, 

minor revision, as follows:  
Any student who, prior to the 2016-17 school year, was granted a transfer out of a Title I school 
that had been identified for program improvement shall be allowed to remain in the school of 
enrollment until he/she completes the highest grade offered at that school. 
 

 A student granted intradistrict enrollment under other circumstances Once enrolled, a student shall 
not be required to reapply for readmission.  However, the student but may be subject to 
displacement due to excessive enrollment. 

 
1617-35 Approval of Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5121, Grades/Evaluation 

of Student Achievement 
Discussed and requested administrative review. Will bring back in October. 
 

1617-36 Approval of Board Policy 5131.62, Tobacco 
 
 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
September 13, 2016 

 
SCOE 

Minutes 

4 

 
1617-37 Approval of Administrative Regulation  6158, Independent Study, minor revision 

as follows: 
 The signed, dated agreement, any supplemental agreement, assignment records, work samples, and 

attendance records may be maintained on file electronically.  (EC 51747) 
 
1617-38 Approval of Board Policy 6179, Supplemental Instruction, minor revision as 

follows: 
  2. Eligible students from low-income families whenever the district or a district  
  school receiving federal Title I funds has been 
 

  The district shall offer alternative supports designed to increase the academic    
  achievement of socioeconomically disadvantaged students attending schools identified   
  by the California Department of Education for program improvement for two or more   
  consecutive years. 

  
H. ADVANCED PLANNING 
 

1. Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on October 11, 2016, at Downieville School, 
130 School Street, Downieville CA 95936, beginning with Closed Session, as needed, 
at 5 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm 

   
2. Suggested Agenda Items   

 
a. Negotiations 
b. AR and BP 5121, Grades Evaluation of Student Achievement, after 

Administrators’ review. 
  

I. ADJOURN 
DRYDEN/DRISCOLL 
6:48 pm 

 
 
 
 

 __________________________   _______________________________  
 Allen Wright, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 
        Secretary of the Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 09/01/2016 through 09/30/2016

Check 
Amount

Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00014456 09/09/2016 ALPINE FIRE SERVICES, INC. SALES 

AND SERVICE

01-5600 FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTION AND 

REPAIR

65.86 

00014457 09/09/2016 CA FOUNDATION FOR AG IN THE 

CLASSROOM

01-5200 REGISTRATION 280.00 

00014458 09/09/2016 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES, LLC 01-4300 RECORD BOOKS 97.82 

00014459 09/09/2016 DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 274.57 

00014460 09/09/2016 BLAINE DONNELLY 01-5200 TRAVEL EXPENSES 512.84 

00014461 09/09/2016 ERIN FOLCHI 01-5200 PER DIEM 93.00 

00014462 09/09/2016 MERRILL GRANT 01-5200 PER DIEM/MILEAGE 340.78 

00014463 09/09/2016 JANIS HARDEMAN 01-5810 NURSE SERVICES 2,800.00 

00014464 09/09/2016 HOLIDAY INN CAPITOL PLAZA 01-5200 HOTEL ACCOMODATIONS 227.70 

00014465 09/09/2016 HUMBOLDT COUNTY OFFICE OF ED 

ATTN: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

01-5810 WORKABILITY PASSWORD 125.00 

00014466 09/09/2016 LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-5500 ELECTRICAL SERVICE 179.91 

00014467 09/09/2016 BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-5100 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

1,878.66 

01-5810 CONTRACTED CONSULTANT 

AGREEMENT

1,252.44 3,131.10 

00014468 09/09/2016 CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY, 

SACRAMENTO

01-9500 REGISTRATION 150.00 

00014469 09/09/2016 SCHOOL SPECIALITY, INC 01-4300 PRESCHOOL SUPPLIES 703.74 

00014470 09/09/2016 SELPA ADMINISTRATOR'S ASSOC C/O 

CLIFTON, LARSON, ALLEN LLP

01-5300 SELPA DUES 600.00 

00014471 09/09/2016 SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF 

EDUCATION

01-5808 BANK SERVICE FEES 107.84 

00014472 09/09/2016 TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS INSURANCE 

GROUP

01-9535 SEP 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 1,873.00 

76-9576 SEP 16 HEALTH INSURANCE 14,221.10 16,094.10 

00014473 09/09/2016 U.S. BANK 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 117.26 

01-5200 SUPT. TRAVEL EXPENSES 414.00 

01-5899 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES 19.99 551.25 

00014474 09/09/2016 VOYAGER 01-4350 FUEL EXPENSE 15.64 

01-5899 FUEL EXPENSE 52.03 67.67 

00014475 09/20/2016 APPLE COMPUTER 01-4400 COMPUTERS 2,909.86 

00014476 09/20/2016 HEIDI BETHKE 01-5200 TUPE CONFERENCE 186.47 

00014477 09/20/2016 HILTON SACRAMENTO ARDEN WEST 01-5200 HOTEL ACCOMODATIONS 194.01 

00014478 09/20/2016 LAKE NATOMA INN 01-5200 HOTEL ACCOMODATIONS 214.26 

00014479 09/20/2016 QUILL CORPORATION 01-4300 CLASSROOM SUPPLIES 150.52 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2016  8:18AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



Board ReportReqPay12c

Checks Dated 09/01/2016 through 09/30/2016

Check 
Amount

Pay to the Order ofCheck 
Number

Check 
Date

Expensed 
AmountFund-Object Comment

00014480 09/20/2016 SATELLITE SPORTS GROUP DBA 

PERFECTION ON WHEELS

01-5810 BMX ASSEMBLY 2,394.00 

00014481 09/20/2016 WORKABILITY REGION 4 SHAWNA 

PACHECO

01-5200 REGISTRATION 100.00 

00014482 09/20/2016 ALLEN WRIGHT 01-5200 PER DIEM 27.00 

Total Number of Checks 27 32,579.30 

Fund Recap

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 27 18,358.20 01

Payroll Clearing 1 14,221.10 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 27 32,579.30 

.00 

32,579.30 

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the 

preceding Checks be approved. Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Oct  4 2016  8:18AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
 
Students BP 5121 
 
GRADES/EVALUATION OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 
 
 The Governing Board believes that grades serve a valuable instructional purpose by helping students 
and parents/guardians understand performance expectations and identifying the student's areas of 
strength and those areas needing improvement. Parents/guardians and students have the right to receive 
course grades that represent an accurate evaluation of the student's academic performance. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a uniform grading system that shall be applied to all 
students in that course and grade level. Teachers shall inform students and parents/guardians how 
academic performance will be evaluated in the classroom. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
A teacher shall base a student's grades solely on the quality of the student's academic work and his/her 
mastery of course content based on district standards. Students shall have the opportunity to demonstrate 
this mastery through a variety of methods, including, but not limited to, tests, projects, portfolios, and/or 
class discussion as appropriate. Other elements that are not a direct measure of knowledge and 
understanding of course content, such as attendance, effort, student conduct, and work habits, shall not 
be factored into the academic grade but may be reported separately. 
 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
 
Whenever a student misses an assignment or assessment due to either an excused or unexcused absence, 
he/she shall be given full credit for subsequent satisfactory completion of the assignment or assessment. 
 
(cf. 6154 - Homework/Makeup Work) 
 
Students in grades K-3 shall receive progress reports at the end of each grading period rather than letter 
grades. 
 
At all grade levels, report cards may include reports of student progress on specific academic standards 
applicable to the course and grade level. 
 
When reporting student performance to parents/guardians, teachers may add narrative descriptions, 
observational notes, and/or samples of classroom work in order to better describe student progress in 
specific skills and subcategories of achievement. 
 
A report card for a student with a disability may contain information about his/her disability, including 
whether that student received special education or related services, provided that the report card informs 
parents/guardians about their child's progress or level of achievement in specific classes, course content, 



2 
 

or curriculum. However, transcripts that may be used to inform postsecondary institutions or prospective 
employers of the student's academic achievements shall not contain information disclosing the student's 
disability. 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504) 
 
A grade assigned by the teacher shall not be changed by the Board or the Superintendent except as 
provided by law, Board policy, or administrative regulation.  (Education Code 49066) 
 
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall  determine the methodology to be used in calculating students' 
grade point average (GPA), including the courses to be included within the GPA and whether extra 
grade weighting shall be applied to Advanced Placement, International Baccalaureate, honors, and/or 
concurrent postsecondary courses. 
(cf. 6141.4 - International Baccalaureate Program) 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
48070  Promotion and retention 
48205  Excused absences 
48800-48802 Enrollment of gifted students in community college 
48904-48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 
49066  Grades; finalization; physical education class 
49067  Mandated regulations regarding student's achievement 
49069.5  Students in foster care, grades and credits 
51242  Exemption from physical education based on participation in interscholastic athletics 
69432.9  Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average 
76000-76002  Enrollment in community college 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
10060  Criteria for reporting physical education achievement, high schools 
30008 Definition of high school grade point average for student aid eligibility 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.1-99.67  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
COURT DECISIONS 
Owasso Independent School District v. Falvo, (2002) 534 U.S. 426 
Las Virgenes Educators Association v. Las Virgenes Unified School District, (2001) 86 Cal.App.4th 1 
Swany v. San Ramon Valley Unified School District, (1989) 720 F.Supp. 764 
Johnson v. Santa Monica-Malibu Unified School District Board of Education, (1986) 179 Cal.App.3d 593 

Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Research-Supported Strategies to Improve the Accuracy and Fairness of Grades, Governance Brief, July 2016 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS CORRESPONDENCE 
Report Cards and Transcripts for Students with Disabilities, October 17, 2008 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Student Aid Commission: http://www.csac.ca.gov 
 

Policy   SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted:  April 10, 2007   Sierraville, California 
revised:  October 11, 2016 Loyalton, California 

http://www.csac.ca.gov/


1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Administrative Regulation 
Students AR 5121 
GRADES/EVALUATION OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall inform teachers of the district's policy regarding grading, including 
expectations that grades shall be based on factors that directly measure students' knowledge and skills in 
the content area and shall not include nonacademic factors. 
 
Report cards displaying students' grades in each subject or course shall be distributed to 
parents/guardians at the end of each grading period. Parents/guardians shall be offered an opportunity to 
meet with their child's teacher(s) to discuss the grades and strategies to improve their child's 
performance. 
 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Whenever it becomes evident to a teacher that a student is in danger of failing a course, the teacher shall 
arrange a conference with the student's parent/guardian or send the parent/guardian a written report.  
(Education Code 49067) 
 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
 
For each student in grades 9-12, the Superintendent or designee shall maintain a transcript recording the 
courses taken, the term that each course was taken, credits earned, final grades, and date of graduation. 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
Grades for Academic Performance 
 
For grades K-3, students' level of progress for each grading period shall be reported as follows: 
 
S Satisfactory 
N Needs Improvement 
E Excellent 
 
For grades 4-12, grades for academic performance shall be reported for each grading period as follows: 
 
A (90-100%) Outstanding Achievement 4.0 grade points 
B (80-89%) Above Average Achievement 3.0 grade points 
C (70-79%) Average Achievement 2.0 grade points 
D (60-69%) Below Average Achievement 1.0 grade points 
F (0-59%) Little or No Achievement 0 grade points 
I  Incomplete 0 grade points 
 
An Incomplete shall be given only when a student's work is not finished by the end of the grading period 
because of illness or other excused absence.  If not made up within six weeks, the Incomplete shall 
become an F. 



2 
 
Because of the more rigorous nature of Advanced Placement, International Baccalaureate, honors, and 
concurrent postsecondary courses, students receiving a grade of A, B, or C in those courses shall receive 
extra grade weighting as follows: 
 
A (90-100%) Outstanding Achievement 5.0 grade points 
B (80-89%) Above Average Achievement 4.0 grade points 
C (70-79%) Average Achievement 3.0 grade points 
 
(cf. 6141.4 - International Baccalaureate Program) 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 
 
Grades for Physical Education 
 
No grade of a student participating in a physical education class may be adversely affected due to the 
fact that the student, because of circumstances beyond his/her control, does not wear standardized 
physical education apparel. (Education Code 49066) 
 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
 
Student performance in high school physical education courses shall be based upon evaluation of the 
student's individual progress, attainment of goals in each instructional area, tests designed to determine 
skill and knowledge, and physical performance tests. (5 CCR 10060) 
 
Students in grades 7-12 must have earned at least a 2.0 GPA the previous grading period in all core 
subjects in order to participate in extracurricular activities.  Students who receive an F in any class are 
ineligible to participate in extracurricular activities 
 
High school students using interscholastic athletic participation to fulfill physical education 
requirements, as authorized by Education Code 51242, may be graded on this participation provided a 
teacher credentialed to teach physical education supervises this participation and assigns the grade. 
 
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition) 
 
Grades for College Courses 
 
When the district has approved a student to receive district credit for coursework completed at a 
community college or four-year college, he/she shall receive the same letter grade as is granted by the 
college. 
 
Grades for Citizenship and Work Habits 
 
Any grades assigned for citizenship or work habits, such as effort or study skills, shall be reported as 
follows: 
 
E    Excellent      
S Satisfactory 
N Needs Improvement 
 



3 
 
 
Pass/Fail Grading 
 
The Superintendent or designee may identify courses or programs for which students may, with 
parent/guardian permission, elect to earn a Pass or Fail grade instead of a letter grade. 
 
Students who receive a Pass grade shall acquire the appropriate semester units of credit for the course. 
The grade shall not be counted in determining class rank, honors list, or membership in the California 
Scholarship Federation. Students who receive a Fail grade shall not receive credit for taking the course. 
 
Honor Roll 
 
Each school shall post an Honor Roll.  All courses except Pass/Fail shall be counted in computing 
eligibility for the Honor Roll.  To qualify for the Blue Honor Roll, a student must earn a grade point 
average (GPA) of 3.0 or better.  Gold students must have a 3.5 GPA and no grades below a C. 
 
Peer Grading 
 
At their discretion, teachers may use peer grading of student tests, papers, and assignments as appropriate 
to reinforce lessons. 
 
Repeating Classes 
 
With the approval of the principal or designee, a student may repeat a course in order to raise his/her 
grade. Both grades received shall be entered on the student's transcript, but the student shall receive 
credit only once for taking the course. The highest grade received shall be used in determining the 
student's overall grade point average (GPA). 
 
Withdrawal from Classes 
 
A student who drops a course during the first six weeks of the grading period may do so without any 
entry on his/her permanent record card. A student who drops a course after the first six weeks of the 
grading period shall receive an F grade on his/her permanent record, unless otherwise decided by the 
principal or designee because of extenuating circumstances. 
 
Effect of Absences on Grades 
 
Teachers who choose to withhold class credit because of excessive unexcused absences shall so inform 
students and parents/guardians of such a possibility at the beginning of the school year or semester. 
When a student reaches the number of unexcused absences defined as excessive in Board policy, the 
student and parent/guardian shall again be notified of the district's policy regarding excessive unexcused 
absences. 
 
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses) 
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy) 
 
The student and parent/guardian shall have a reasonable opportunity to explain the absences. (Education 
Code 49067) 
 



4 
 
If a student receives a failing grade because of excessive unexcused absences, the student's record shall 
specify that the grade was assigned because of excessive unexcused absences. (Education Code 49067) 
 
Grades for a student in foster care shall not be lowered if the student is absent for any reason specified 
in Education Code 49069.5. 
 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
 
Grade Point Average 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall calculate each student's GPA using the grade point assigned to 
each letter grade in accordance with the scale described in the section "Grades for Academic 
Performance" above. The grade points for all applicable coursework shall be totaled and divided by the 
number of courses completed. Pass/Fail grades shall not be included in the determination of a student's 
GPA. 
 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities) 
 
When plus and minus designations are added to letter grades, they shall not be considered in determining 
GPA. 
 
Each academic year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide to the Student Aid Commission the 
GPA of all district students in grade 12, except for students who have opted out or are permitted by the 
rules of the Student Aid Commission to provide test scores in lieu of the GPA. (Education Code 69432.9) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
approved:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:  August 9, 2011 
revised:  September 8, 2015 Loyalton, California 
revised:  October 11, 2016 



SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-005 
 

SUFFICIENCY OF TEXTBOOKS OR INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Board of Education, in order to comply with the requirements of 
Education Code 60119, held a public hearing on October 11, 2016, at 6 o’clock, which is on or before 
the eighth week of school and which did not take place during or immediately following school hours, 
and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing by posting it in at least 
three public places within the County stating the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the Board encouraged participation by parents/guardians, teachers, members, of the 
community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 
 
WHEREAS, information provided at the public hearing detailed the extent to which textbooks and 
instructional materials were provided to all students, including English learners, in the Sierra County 
Office of Education, and; 
 
WHEREAS, “instructional materials” means all materials that are designed for use by pupils and their 
teachers as a learning resource and help pupils to acquire facts, skills, or opinions or to develop 
cognitive processes.  Each student, including English learners, will have a textbook or instructional 
materials, or both, to use in class and to take home, which may include materials in a digital format but 
shall not include photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials copied 
to address a shortage, and;  
 
WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each student, including 
English learners, that are aligned to the academic content standards and consistent with the cycle and 
content of the curriculum frameworks in the following subjects; 
 
Mathematics    My Math     McGraw-Hill Education © 2017 
  California Mathematics, Grades 4-7  Macmillan/McGraw-Hill/Glencoe  
   Mathematics Course 1    Prentice Hall © 2013 

Pre-Algebra, Grades 8-12    Prentice Hall  
Algebra II, Grades 8-12     Glencoe  

   Pre Calculus     Houghton Mifflin  
 
   Newly Adopted for 2015-16: 

Mathematics, Course 1, Common Core  Pearson Education, Inc.  
Mathematics, Course 2, Common Core  Pearson Education, Inc. ©2013 
Mathematics, Course 3, Common Core   Pearson Education, Inc. ©2013 
Geometry, Common Core   Pearson Education, Inc. ©2015 
Algebra 1, Common Core, CA   Pearson Education, Inc. ©2015 
Algebra 2, Common Core, CA   Pearson Education, Inc. ©2015 
Calculus, AP Edition    Pearson Education, Inc. ©2014 
Calculus, Graphical, Numerical, Algebraic,  
     5th Edition     Pearson Education, Inc. ©2016 

   Financial Algebra     Cengage Learning ©2011 
 

 



 
Science   California Edition, Grades 2-5    Harcourt  
   Earth Science (High School)    Glencoe/McGraw Hill  ©2013 
   Life Science, Grade 7     Glencoe/McGraw Hill  ©2012 
   Physical Science, Grade 8    Glencoe/McGraw Hill  ©2012 
   Physics      Pearson © 2014 
   Biology      Glencoe/McGraw Hill  ©2012 
   Chemistry      Glencoe/McGraw Hill  ©2013 
   Chemistry, 8th ed.,     Cengage Learning ©2012 
 
History/  Neighborhoods, Communities, US History,  
Social Science      Grades K-5th     Houghton-Mifflin  
   Ancient Civilizations, Grades 6, 7, 8   Holt Rinehart Winston 
   Medieval to Early Modern Times, Grade 7  Holt  
   Geography      Glencoe  
   United States History, Independence to 1914,  Holt  
        Grade 8  
   Modern World History, Grade 10   McDougall-Littell  
   The Americans, Grade 11    McDougall-Littell  
   Am. Government, Economics    Prentice Hall  
 
 
English/  Mirrors & Windows    EMC Publishing, LLC © 2016 
Language Arts     Continuing with Literature, Levels I-V 
       British Tradition 
(Including    American Tradition 
English Learners) 
   Wonders CA Comprehensive System 
   The Power of Connection   McGraw-Hill Education © 2015-17 
 

WHEREAS, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were provided to each student enrolled in 
foreign language or health classes, and; 
 
WHEREAS, laboratory science equipment was available for science laboratory classes offered in 
grades 9-12, inclusive. 
 
THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED THAT for the 2016-2017 school year, the Sierra County Office 
of Education has provided each student with sufficient textbooks and instructional materials aligned to 
the academic content standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum 
frameworks. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Sierra County Board of Education held on 
October 11, 2016, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:     
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
VACANT:  
             ____________________________ 
        Allen Wright, Clerk 







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
September 2016 

 
Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made in CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, board bylaws, and/or 
exhibits.  

 
BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures        (BP/AR revised) 

Mandated policy updated to reflect programs that must be investigated in accordance with the uniform complaint procedures 
(UCP), as listed on the California Department of Education's 2016/17 UCP Checklist.  Mandated administrative regulation 
revised to clarify required annual notification and complaint filing requirements, and to provide for equitable treatment of a 
respondent to a complaint as required under federal law.  
 

BP/AR 3230 - Federal Grant Funds - - NEW        (BP/AR added) 
New mandated policy and mandated regulation reflect major requirements for the management of federal grant funds contained 
in the Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (commonly called the "Uniform Guidance"), including the mandate to adopt written 
procedures related to procurement, conflict of interest, cash management, and allowable costs. Policy addresses the board's 
desire to maintain fiscal integrity and transparency in the use of federal grant funds, key components of the district's financial 
management system, and the submission of performance reports in accordance with law and the requirements of the awarding 
agency. Regulation includes material related to allowable costs, procurement, cash management, audits, and records, including 
requirements for employees to document "time and effort" spent on grant activities. Regulation also reflects the option to delay 
implementation of the procurement standards in the Uniform Guidance up to July 1, 2017, provided that the decision is 
documented in the district's procurement policy. 

 
BP/AR 3270 - Sale and Disposal of Books, Equipment and Supplies 
(BP revised/AR – Legal Codes updated only – NOT needed on agenda for approval) 

Policy and regulation updated to make minor revisions in the renumbering of legal cites pursuant to the Uniform Guidance for 
federal grant funds and to cross-reference new BP/AR 3230 - Federal Grant Funds.  

 
AR 3440 – Inventories        (AR revised) 

Regulation updated to make minor revisions in the renumbering of legal cites pursuant to the Uniform Guidance for federal 
grant funds, cross-reference new BP/AR 3230 - Federal Grant Funds, and reflect requirement to annually submit an inventory 
listing of federally owned property in the district's custody to the federal agency that granted the award. 

 
AR 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability        (AR revised) 

Regulation updated to add general language on the need to audit federal grant funds, while deleting detailed material regarding 
the submission of records related to the audit of federal funds, now addressed in AR 3230 - Federal Grant Funds. Section on 
"Other Postemployment Benefits Report" updated to reflect Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 
75, which supersedes GASB Statement 45 for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017, although earlier implementation is 
encouraged. Revisions reflect the requirements to report the total unfunded liability for OPEBs and to perform an actuarial 
valuation every two years regardless of the number of members in the OPEB plan, although an alternative method is still 
allowed for plans with fewer than 100 members 

 
AR 3512 – Equipment        (AR revised) 

Regulation updated to make minor revisions in the renumbering of legal cites pursuant to the Uniform Guidance for federal 
grant funds and to cross-reference new BP/AR 3230 - Federal Grant Funds.  

 
BP/AR 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment        (BP/AR revised) 

Mandated policy revised to clarify (1) that the policy is applicable to off-campus conduct that may have a continuing impact 
on a student at school, and (2) that the district must investigate all allegations of discrimination of which it has notice, regardless 
of whether a formal written complaint is filed, and must take action to address any effect of discrimination found.  Mandated 
administrative regulation updated to ensure consistency of reporting procedure with formal complaint process in the UCP and 
to clarify various provisions in the section on "Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students." 

 
BP/AR 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment        (BP/AR revised) 

Mandated policy revised to clarify that the district must investigate every allegation of sexual harassment of which it has notice, 
whether or not a formal written complaint is filed, and, when needed, must take interim measures to ensure safety of any student 
complainant or victim of sexual harassment. Mandated administrative regulation revised to recommend how the district may 
address a report of off-campus sexually harassing conduct. 

 



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

Community Relations BP 1312.3(a)

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

Note: To address prohibited discrimination and violations of state and federal laws governing educational programs, 5 CCR 4621
mandates districts to adopt uniform complaint procedures (UCP) consistent with the state's complaint procedures specified in 5
CCR 4600-4670. Pursuant to 5 CCR 4610, districts are required to adopt a uniform system of procedures that meets specified
requirements for investigating and resolving complaints alleging (1) noncompliance with state and federal laws and regulations
governing educational programs; (2) noncompliance with state law prohibiting the charging of student fees; or (3) unlawful
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying). Although some bullying incidents may not fall
within the provisions of 5 CCR 4610, BP 5131.2 - Bullying strongly recommends that districts use the UCP to investigate all
bullying incidents, regardless of whether there is an allegation of discriminatory bullying, to ensure consistent implementation
by district staff.  It is not always easy or possible for staff to know prior to an investigation whether a student was bullied because
of his/her actual or perceived membership in a legally protected class. After investigation, bullying incidents found to involve
unlawful discrimination would then be resolved using the UCP.  Districts that are concerned about the capacity of a single district
compliance officer to handle a possible increase in the number of UCP complaints, or that prefer to handle certain incidents at
the school site level whenever possible, may designate multiple compliance officers in accordance with the accompanying
administrative regulation.

Education Code 52075 mandates districts to adopt policies and procedures implementing the use of the UCP to investigate and
resolve complaints alleging noncompliance with requirements related to the local control and accountability plan. For plan
requirements, see BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan.  In addition, legislation enacted in 2015 authorizes the
use of the UCP to resolve complaints of noncompliance with laws related to accommodations for lactating students, educational
rights of foster youth and homeless students, assignment of students to courses without educational content, and physical
education instructional minutes, as specified in items #3 and #6-9 below.  Finally, a district should adopt policies and procedures
implementing the use of the UCP to investigate and resolve complaints alleging retaliation in response to a complaint.

The California Department of Education (CDE) monitors district programs and operations for compliance with these
requirements through its Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) process. The FPM consists of a review of (1) written district policies
and procedures for required statements, including prohibition of discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
and bullying) against students pursuant to Education Code 234.1, and (2) records of required activities, such as annual notification
provided to students, parents/guardians, employees, and other school community members.

CSBA staff received feedback and comments from representatives of CDE and OCR regarding this policy and the accompanying
administrative regulation. As a result, the sample policy and regulation have been drafted to go beyond the requirements of
California's UCP laws and regulations in an attempt to address issues and concerns raised by CDE and OCR. While CDE and
OCR have not approved or signed off on the samples, CSBA believes that the additional details provided herein may help school
districts and county offices of education during any compliance check by CDE or in the event that a CDE or OCR investigation
occurs.

The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with
applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs. The Board encourages the
early, informal resolution of complaints whenever possible and appropriate.. To resolve complaints which
cannot be resolved through such informalmay require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform
system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying administrative regulation.

The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve the following
complaints:

1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations governing
adult education programs, consolidated categorical aidafter school education and safety programs,



2

migrant education, career technical and technical education and training programs, child care and
development programs, child nutrition programs, and special education programs , consolidated
categorical aid programs, and any other district-implemented program which is listed in Education
Code 64000(a) (5 CCR 4610)

(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals)
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance)
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development)
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs)
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program)
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education)
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning)
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program)
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education)

2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) against any personstudent, employee, or other person participating in district
programs and activities, including, but not limited to, those programs or activities funded directly by
or that receive or benefit from any state financial assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived
characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, ethnic group
identification, age, religion, marital, pregnancy, or parental status, physical or mental disability,
sex, sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other
characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or Penal Code
422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or more of these actual or
perceived characteristics  (5 CCR 4610)

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide reasonable
accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast milk, breastfeed an infant
child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the student (Education Code 222)

(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)

4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring students to pay
fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational activities (5 CCR 4610)

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District)

5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the implementation
of the local control and accountability plan (Education Code 52075)

(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district noncompliance
with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding placement decisions, the responsibilities
of the district's educational liaison to the student, the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily
completed in another school or district, school transfer, or the grant of an exemption from Board-
imposed graduation requirements (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)



3

7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, alleging district
noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the student regarding the award of credit for
coursework satisfactorily completed in another school or district or the grant of an exemption from
Board-imposed graduation requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

8. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education Code 51228.1 and
51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student to a course without educational content for more than
one week in any semester or to a course the student has previously satisfactorily completed, without
meeting specified conditions (Education Code 51228.3)

(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment)

9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education instructional minutes
requirement for students in elementary school (Education Code 51210, 51223)

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)

10. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the complaint process
or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to this policy

11. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy

The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature of the allegations,
offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to all parties. ADR such as mediation
may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult.  However, mediation
shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable
risk that a party to the mediation would feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall
ensure that the use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations.

The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the confidentiality of
the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. As appropriate for any complaint alleging retaliation
or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent
or designee shall keep confidential the identity of the complainant and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she
is different from the complainant, as long as the integrity of the complaint process is maintained.

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district shall refer the
non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate and, if appropriate, resolve the
UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness and knowledge of
current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines specified in this policy and the
accompanying administrative regulation.
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the investigations of those
complaints.  All such records shall be destroyed in accordance with applicable state law and district policy.
(cf. 3580 - District Records)



4

Non-UCP Complaints

The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the specified agency:
(5 CCR 4611)

1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County Department of Social
Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the appropriate law enforcement agency.

2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program shall, for licensed
facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, for licensing-exempt facilities, be
referred to the appropriate Child Development regional administrator.

3. Any complaint alleging employment discrimination shall be sent to the California Department of Fair
Employment and Housing and the compliance officer shall notify the complainant by first class mail
of the transfer.

4. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the California Department of Education.

In addition, the district's Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures, AR 1312.4, shall be used to investigate and
resolve any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or urgent
facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or teacher vacancies and
misassignments.  (Education Code 35186)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination
222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students
8200-8498  Child care and development programs
8500-8538  Adult basic education
18100-18203  School libraries
32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures
35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures
48853-48853.5  Foster youth
48985  Notices in language other than English
49010-49013  Student fees
49060-49079  Student records
49069.5  Rights of parents
49490-49590  Child nutrition programs
51210  Courses of study grades 1-6
51223  Physical education, elementary schools
51225.1-51225.2  Foster youth and homeless children; course credits; graduation requirements
51228.1-51228.3  Course periods without educational content
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially:
52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements
52160-52178  Bilingual education programs
52300-52490  Career technical education
52500-52616.24  Adult schools
52800-52870  School-based program coordination
54400-54425  Compensatory education programs
54440-54445  Migrant education
54460-54529  Compensatory education programs
56000-56867  Special education programs
59000-59300  Special schools and centers
64000-64001  Consolidated application process
GOVERNMENT CODE
11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act



5

PENAL CODE
422.55  Hate crime; definition
422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
3080  Application of section
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1221 Application of laws
1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972
6301-6577  Title I basic programs
6801-6871  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students
7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act
7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs
7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs
12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin
104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504
106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX
106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex
110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age

Management Resources:
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015
Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014
Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013
Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, April 2011
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010
Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, or Third Parties, January 2001
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National Origin Discrimination Affecting
Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov
Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/OCR
U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:  August 10, 2010
revised:  June 12, 2012
revised:  February 12, 2013 Loyalton, California
revised:  December 9, 2014
revised:  October 13, 2015
revised:  April 12, 2016
revised:  October 11, 2016

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://familypolicy.ed.gov
http://www.ed.gov/OCR
http://www.justice.gov


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Community Relations AR 1312.3

UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

Note:  5 CCR 4621 mandates that the district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) be consistent with the procedures of 5 CCR
4600-4687.  Additionally, Education Code 52075 mandates districts to adopt policies and procedures implementing the use of
the UCP to investigate and resolve complaints alleging noncompliance with requirements related to the local control and
accountability plan (LCAP).

Furthermore, a number of federal civil rights statutes and their implementing regulations mandate districts to adopt policies and
procedures for the prompt and equitable resolution of complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying). For example, all districts are mandated pursuant to 28 CFR 35.107 to adopt policy and procedures to
address discrimination on the basis of disability, while districts that receive federal financial assistance are mandated pursuant
to 34 CFR 106.8 and 34 CFR 110.25 to adopt such policies and procedures to address discrimination on the basis of sex and age.
Some of the factors considered by the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) when determining whether
a district's procedures are "prompt and equitable" are addressed throughout the following administrative regulation.

Apart from these mandates, state legislation enacted in 2015 authorizes the use of the UCP to resolve complaints of
noncompliance with laws related to accommodations for lactating students, educational rights of foster youth and homeless
students, assignment of students to courses without educational content, and physical education instructional minutes, as specified
in items #3 and #6-9 of the accompanying Board policy.

Except as the Governing Board may otherwise specifically provide in other district policies, these uniform
complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the complaints specified in BP
1312.3.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials)
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

Compliance Officers

Note:  5 CCR 4621 requires the district to identify in its policies and procedures the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible
for ensuring compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational programs, including the
receiving and investigating of complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or
bullying) and retaliation. During its Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) process, California Department of Education (CDE)
staff will check to ensure that the district's procedures list the specific title(s) of the employee(s) responsible for receiving and
investigating complaints.  Districts should identify the specific title(s) of the compliance officer(s) in the space provided below.
If a district identifies multiple compliance officers, it is recommended that one be designated the "lead compliance officer."

The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for coordinating the
district's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal civil rights laws. The individual(s)
also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment as the
responsible employee to handle complaints regarding sexunlawful discrimination. (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying). The individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of
complaints and shall ensure district compliance with law.

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)



2

Dr. Merrill M. Grant
Superintendent
P. O. Box 955
109 Beckwith Road,
Loyalton, CA 96118
(530) 993-1660 Ext. *837
mgrant@spjusd.org

The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to investigate and
resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the complainant and respondent, if
applicable, if another compliance officer is assigned to the complaint.

In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a bias or conflict of
interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving the complaint. Any complaint against
or implicating a compliance officer mayor that raises a concern about the compliance officer's ability to
investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed with the Superintendent or designee who shall
determine how the complaint will be investigated.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and resolve complaints
receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at issue in the complaints to which they
are assigned. Training provided to such employees shall include current state and federal laws and regulations
governing the program, applicable processes for investigating and resolving complaints, including those
involving allegedalleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or
bullying), applicable standards for reaching decisions on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures.
Assigned employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent or designee.

(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 9124 - Attorney)

The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine whether interim
measures are necessary during and pending the result of an investigation. If interim measures are determined
to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator shall consult with the Superintendent, the
Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the site principal to implement, if possible, one or more interim
measures. The interim measures mayshall remain in place until the compliance officer determines that they
are no longer necessary or until the district issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first.

Notifications

The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools and offices,
including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms.  (Education Code 234.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's UCP, including
information regarding unlawful student fees, local control and accountability plan (LCAP) requirements, and
requirements related to the educational rights of foster youth and homeless students, to students, employees,
parents/guardians, the district advisory committee, school advisory committees, appropriate private school
officials or representatives, and other interested parties.  (Education Code 262.3, 48853, 48853.5, 49013,
49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 52075; 5 CCR 4622)

(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils)
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees)

mailto:mgrant@spjusd.org


3

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

The annual notification and complete contact information of the compliance officer(s) may be posted on the
district web site.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including students and
parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant information provided in the
district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary language other
than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the UCP shall be translated into
that language, in accordance with Education Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall
ensure meaningful access to all relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English
proficiency.

Note:  During the FPM process, CDE staff will check the notice to ensure that it contains a summary of the complaint procedures
as specified in items #1-4 below.

The notice shall:

1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints

2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her under state or federal
antidiscrimination laws, if applicable

3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the complainant's right to take
a complaint directly to the California Department of Education (CDE) or to pursue remedies before
civil courts or other public agencies, such as the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights
(OCR) in cases involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or
bullying).

4. Include statements that:

a. The district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with applicable state and
federal laws and regulations governing educational programs.

b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the date of receipt of
the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline.

c. A complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later than six months from the date it occurred, or
six months from the date the complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged
unlawful discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the



4

Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth
the reasons for the extension.

dd. Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable
to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to conditions such as a disability or
illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.

e. If a complaint is not filed in writing but the district receives notice of any allegation that is
subject to the UCP, the district shall take affirmative steps to investigate and address the
allegations, in a manner appropriate to the particular circumstances.

If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation reveals that discrimination has
occurred, the district will take steps to prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its
discriminatory effects on the complainant, and on others, if appropriate.

f. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for his/her participation
in an educational activity that constitutes an integral fundamental part of the district's
educational program, including curricular and extracurricular activities.

Note:  Education Code 52075 requires that information regarding LCAP requirements be included in the district's annual
notification. See BP/AR 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan for details of the LCAP and specific requirements for its
adoption and implementation.

g. The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner that includes
meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students, and other stakeholders in the
development and/or review of the LCAP.

Note:  Items #4h and i below reflect Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, and 51225.2, as amended by AB 379
(Ch. 772, Statutes of 2015).  Pursuant to Education Code 48853.5, as amended, the CDE is required to develop a standardized
notice of the rights of foster youth in consultation with the California Foster Youth Education Task Force, and to make it available
for dissemination by posting it on its Internet Web site.

h. A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to his/her educational
placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as well as the responsibilities of the district
liaison for foster youth to ensure and facilitate these requirements and to assist the student in
ensuring proper transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers between
schools or between the district and another district.

gi. A foster youth or homeless student who transfers into a district high school or between district
high schools shall be notified of the district's responsibility to:

(1) (1)Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has satisfactorily
completed in another public school, juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian
school or agency, and to issue full or partial credit for the coursework completed

(2) (2)Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course which he/she has
satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile court school, or a nonpublic,
nonsectarian school or agency



5

(3) (3)If the student has completed his/her second year of high school before the transfer,
provide the student information about district-adopted coursework and Board-imposed
graduation requirements from which he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education
Code 51225.1

hj. The complainant has a right to appeal the district's decision to the CDE by filing a written appeal
within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.

In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right to file an appeal with the
CDE in the same manner as the complainant, if he/she is dissatisfied with the district's decision.

k. The appeal to the CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the district and a copy
of the district's decision.

Note:  To ensure that the public is made aware of districts' obligation to provide copies of the UCP free of charge pursuant to 5
CCR 4622, CDE staff review the notice during the FPM process.

l. Copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge.

District Responsibilities

All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt
of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of the timeline.  (5 CCR 4631)

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or
bullying), the district shall inform the respondent when the complainant agrees to an extension of the timeline
for investigating and resolving the complaint.

The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related actions, including
steps taken during the investigation and all information required for compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633.

All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a decision or ruling
is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or allegations of retaliation or unlawful
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when
disclosure is necessary to carry out the investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing
monitoring, or maintain the integrity of the process.  (5 CCR 4630, 4964)

Filing of Complaints

The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of complaints received,
providing each with a code number and a date stamp.

All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a complainant is unable to put a
complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in the
filing of the complaint.  (5 CCR 4600)

Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable:



6

1. A written complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations
governing adult education programs, consolidated categorical aid programs, migrant education, career
technical and technical education and training programs, child care and development programs, child
nutrition programs, and special education programs may be filed by any individual, public agency, or
organization. (5 CCR 4630)

2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against requiring students
to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement related to the LCAP may be filed
anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support an
allegation of noncompliance. A complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of
unlawful student fees may be filed with the principal of the school. or with the Superintendent or
designee. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later than one year from the date the alleged
violation occurred.  (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4630)

3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or
bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she personally suffered the unlawful
discrimination or by a person who believes that an individual or any specific class of individuals has
been subjected to it. The complaint shall be initiated no later than six months from the date when the
alleged unlawful discrimination occurred, or six months from the date when the complainant first
obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for filing may be
extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by
the complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension.  (5 CCR 4630)

4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer shall pursue an investigation or other
response as appropriate, depending on the specificity and reliability of the information provided and
the seriousness of the allegation.

5. When the complainant or alleged victim of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying) or the alleged victim, when he/she is not the complainant,
requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her that the request may limit the
district's ability to investigate the conduct or take other necessary action. When honoring a request for
confidentiality, the district shall nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and
resolve/respond to the complaint consistent with the request.

Mediation

Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may informally discuss
with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation shall be offered to resolve complaints that
involve more than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any
complaint involving an allegation of sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the
mediation would feel compelled to participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall
make all arrangements for this process.

Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall ensure that all parties agree
to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential information.  The compliance officer shall also notify all
parties of the right to end the informal process at any time.



7

If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the compliance officer
shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint.

The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving the complaint
unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If mediation is successful and the
complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the actions agreed to through the mediation. If
mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall then continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative
regulation.

Investigation of Complaint

Note: 5 CCR 4631, which requires the district to provide the complainant with the opportunity to present relevant information,
does not provide any timeline. Thus, the timeline specified below may be modified to reflect district practice.

Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance officer shall begin
an investigation into the complaint.

Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide the complainant
and/or his/her representative with the opportunity to present the information contained in the complaint to the
compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or his/her representative of the opportunity to present
the compliance officer with any evidence, or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the
complaint. Such evidence or information may be presented at any time during the investigation.

Note: In his/her investigation, the compliance officer should consider all relevant circumstances, such as how the misconduct
affected one or more students' education; the type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct; the identity, age, and sex of the
individuals involved in and impacted by the conduct and the relationship between them; the number of persons engaged in the
conduct and at whom the conduct was directed; the size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they
occurred; and other incidents at the school involving different individuals.

In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents and review all
available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any additional evidence or
information received from the parties during the course of the investigation. He/she shall individually interview
all available witnesses with information pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible
location where the relevant actions are alleged to have taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance
officer shall inform both parties of the status of the investigation.

To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview the alleged victim(s), any alleged offenders,
and other relevant witnesses privately, separately, and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff
or legal counsel may conduct or support the investigation.

A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence related to the
allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, or engagement in any other
obstruction of the investigation may result in the dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to
support the allegation. (5 CCR 4631)Similarly, a respondent's refusal to provide the district’s investigator with
documents or other evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the
investigation, or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding, based on
evidence collected, that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.
(5 CCR 4631)



8

In accordance with law, the district shall provide the investigator with access to records and other information
related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way obstruct the investigation. Failure or refusal
of the district to cooperate in the investigation may result in a finding based on evidence collected that a
violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631)

Note: In determining the truth of any allegation, the district should apply the correct standard of proof to the situation. For
example, with allegations of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying) or
retaliation, OCR uses the "preponderance of the evidence" (more likely than not) standard. Any standard of proof that is more
rigorous than required by law could subject a district to liability.

The compliance officer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in determining the veracity of
the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the allegation is more likely to be true than not.

Report of Findings

Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to
the complainant, and respondent if there is one, a written report, as described in the section "Final Written
Decision" below, within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint.  (5 CCR 4631)

The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board meeting convened
in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be answered. The Board may decide
not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision shall be final.

If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the complainant
within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within the time period that has been
specified in a written agreement with the complainant. (5 CCR 4631)

Note:  Pursuant to 5 CCR 4631, only a complainant has the right to receive a written report, and to file his/her complaint with
the Board if dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision.  However, OCR has recommended that the same rights be
extended to a respondent to a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination, to ensure the process is equitable for all involved.
Districts that selected Option 1 should delete reference to filing of a complaint with the Board in the following paragraph.

Final Written Decision

The district's decision on how it will resolve the complaint shall be in writing and shall be sent to the
complainant. and respondent. (5 CCR 4631)

In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision may be
communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may be involved in
implementing the decision or are affected by the complaint, as long as the privacy of the parties is protected.
In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and
bullying), notice of the district's decision to the alleged victim shall include information about any sanction to
be imposed upon the respondent that relates directly to the alleged victim.

If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the student involved
attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single primary language other than English,
then the decision shall also be translated into that language.  In all other instances, the district shall ensure
meaningful access to all relevant information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.



9

Note:  5 CCR 4631 and guidance provided by OCR specify components that should be part of the district's decision. Inclusion
of these items will help protect the district's position in case of an appeal to the CDE, a complaint submitted to OCR, or if
litigation is filed.

For all complaints, the decision shall include:  (5 CCR 4631)

1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual determination, the following
factors may be taken into account:

a. Statements made by any witnesses

b. The relative credibility of the individuals involved

c. How the complaining individual reacted to the incident

d. Any documentary or other evidence relating to the alleged conduct

e. Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders

f. Past false allegations made by the complainant

2. The conclusion(s) of law

3. Disposition of the complaint

4. Rationale for such disposition

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a determination for each
allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination has occurred.

The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration of the following:

a. How the misconduct affected one or more students' education

b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct

c. The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s)

d. The number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was directed

e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they occurred

f. Other incidents at the school involving different individuals

5. Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to address the
allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees complaint, a remedy that
comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600



10

For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or
bullying), the decision may, as required by law, include:

a. The corrective actions imposed on the individual found to have engaged in the conduct that
relate directly to the subject of the complaintrespondent

b. Individual remedies offered or provided to the complainant or another person who was the
subject of the complaint, but this information should not be shared with the respondent.

c. Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment and prevent
recurrence

6. Notice of the complainant's and respondent's right to appeal the district's decision to the CDE within
15 calendar days, and procedures to be followed for initiating such an appeal

The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and for reporting any
subsequent problems.

Note:  During the FPM process, CDE staff will expect to see a statement detailing a complainant's right to pursue civil law
remedies (i.e., action in a court of law) in addition to or in conjunction with the right to pursue administrative remedies from the
CDE.

For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the complainant that:

1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint procedures, including
seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private interest attorneys, 60 calendar days after
the filing of an appeal with the CDE. (Education Code 262.3)

2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in state courts or to
discrimination complaints based on federal law. (Education Code 262.3)

3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, disability, or age
may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr
within 180 days of the alleged discrimination.

Corrective Actions

When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate corrective action
permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger school or district environment may
include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district policies; training for faculty, staff, and students;
updates to school policies; or school climate surveys.

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actionsremedies that focus onmay be offered to the victim
but not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Counseling

2. Academic support

www.ed.gov/ocr


11

3. Health services

4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus

5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or retaliation

6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation does not penalize
the victim

7. Restorative justice

8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no retaliation

9. Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline were related to the
treatment the victim received and described in the complaint

For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student offender may include, but are
not limited to, the following:

1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law

2. Parent/guardian conference

3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others

4. Positive behavior support

5. Referral to a student success team

6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or co-curricular activities or other privileges as permitted by
law

7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law

When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the district shall take appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including
dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and collective bargaining agreement.

The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school community to ensure that
students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of behavior that constitute unlawful discrimination
(such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), that the district does not tolerate it, and how to
report and respond to it.

If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and other charges,
physical education instructional minutes for students in elementary schools, or any requirement related to the
LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians
subject to procedures established by regulation of the State Board of Education.  (Education Code 49013,
51223, 52075)



12

For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the district shall attempt in good
faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all affected students and
parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year prior to the filing of the complaint.
(Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600)

Appeals to the California Department of Education

Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision may file an appeal in writing with
the CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.  (Education Code 222, 48853, 48853.5,
49013, 49069.5, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.3, 52075; 5 CCR 4632)

When a respondent in any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, and bullying) is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision, he/she, in the same manner
as the complainant, may file an appeal with the CDE.

The complainant or respondent shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and whether the facts are
incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The appeal shall be
accompanied by a copy of the locally filed complaint and a copy of the district's decision.  (5 CCR 4632)

Upon notification by the CDE that the complainant or respondent has appealed the district's decision, the
Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to the CDE:  (5 CCR 4633)

1. A copy of the original complaint

2. A copy of the written decision

3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the district, if not covered by the
decision

4. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and documents
submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator

5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint

6. A copy of the district's uniform complaint procedures

7. Other relevant information requested by the CDE

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regulation
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: September 11, 2012 Loyalton, California
revised:     February 12, 2013
revised:     February 11, 2014
revised      December 9, 2014
revised:     April 12, 2016
revised:     October 11, 2016



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3230(a)

FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS

Note: All grants awarded by the federal government, including formula grants (e.g., Title I funding, Part B of the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act) and discretionary grants, are subject to the requirements contained in the
Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (commonly called "Uniform Guidance"), as specified in 2 CFR 200.0-200.521 and
Appendices I-XII.

The Uniform Guidance, adopted in December 2014, includes new provisions but primarily consolidates guidance from
earlier OMB circulars.

Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.110, as amended by 80 Fed. Reg. 54407, the Uniform Guidance applies to all new and continuing
grant awards made on or after December 26, 2014, except that districts may choose to delay implementation of the new
procurement standards until July 1, 2017 or such later date as may be approved in the Uniform Guidance. See the
accompanying administrative regulation for optional language accepting the delayed implementation.

Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.302, 200.318, and 200.319, the district is mandated to adopt written procedures related to
procurement, conflict of interest, cash management, payments, and allowable costs. In addition to the following policy, it
is recommended that districts maintain a detailed administrative regulation or procedures manual addressing the mandated
components.

The Governing Board recognizes the district's responsibility to maintain fiscal integrity and transparency
in the use of all funds awarded through federal grants. The district shall comply with all requirements
detailed in any grant agreement with an awarding agency and with the federal Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards specified in 7 CFR 200.0-
200.521 and any stricter state laws and district policy.

Any goods or services purchased with federal funds shall be reasonable in cost and necessary for the
proper and efficient performance or administration of the program.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's financial management systems and
procedures provide for the following:  (2 CFR 200.302)

1. Identification in district accounts of each federal award received and expended and the federal
program under which it was received

(cf. 3100 - Budget)

2. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial and performance results of each
federal award or program in accordance with the reporting requirements of 2 CFR 200.327 and
200.328

(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability)



3. Records and supporting documentation that adequately identify the source and application of
funds for federally funded activities, including information pertaining to federal awards,
authorizations, obligations, unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, income, and interest

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)

4. Effective controls and accountability for all funds, property, and other assets and assurance that
all assets are used solely for authorized purposes

5. Comparison of actual expenditures with budgeted amounts for each federal award

6. Written procedures to implement provisions governing payments as specified in 2 CFR 200.305

7. Written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in accordance with 2 CFR 200.400-
200.475 and the terms and conditions of the federal grant award

(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)

The Superintendent or designee shall develop and implement appropriate internal control processes to
reasonably assure that transactions are properly executed, recorded, and accounted for so that the district
can prepare reliable financial statements and federal reports, maintain accountability over assets, and
demonstrate compliance with federal laws, regulations, and conditions of the federal award. (2 CFR
200.61, 200.62, 200.303)

Equipment purchased with federal funds shall be properly inventoried and adequately maintained to
safeguard against loss, damage, or theft of the property.

(cf. 3270 - Sale and Disposal of Books, Equipment and Supplies)
(cf. 3440 - Inventories)
(cf. 3512 - Equipment)

All staff involved in the administration or implementation of programs and activities supported by
federal funds shall receive information and training on the allowable use of federal funds, purchasing
procedures, and reporting processes commensurate with their duties.

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

Note: Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.328, districts must submit performance reports at the interval required by the awarding
agency, which shall be at least annually but no more often than quarterly except in unusual circumstances. The district
may request an extension of the due date for any performance report for justifiable reasons.

In addition, the California Department of Education (CDE) is required under Education Code 64001 to monitor districts'
compliance with legal requirements for federal categorical programs. This monitoring is accomplished through the
Federal Program Monitoring process, which is based on a combination of data and document reviews and on-site visits.
For further information, see the CDE's web site and BP 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program.

The district shall submit performance reports to the awarding agency in accordance with the schedule
and indicators required for that federal grant by law and the awarding agency. As required, such reports
may include a comparison of actual accomplishments to the objectives of the federal award, the



relationship between financial data and performance accomplishments, the reasons that established goals
were not met if applicable, cost information to demonstrate cost effective practices, analysis and
explanation of any cost overruns or high unit costs, and other relevant information. The final
performance report shall be submitted within 90 days after the ending date of the grant.  (2 CFR 200.301,
200.328)

(cf. 0500 - Accountability)
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
42122-42129  Budget requirements
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2
180.220 Amount of contract subject to suspension and debarment rules
200.0-200.521 Federal uniform grant guidance, especially:
200.1-200.99  Definitions
200.100-200.113  General provisions
200.317-200.326  Procurement standards
200.327-200.329  Monitoring and reporting
200.333-200.337  Record retention
200.400-200.475  Cost principles
200.500-200.521  Audit requirements
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
76.730-76.731  Records related to federal grant programs
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 48
2.101  Federal acquisition regulation; definitions

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
California Department of Education Audit Guide
California School Accounting Manual
EDUCATION AUDIT APPEALS PANEL PUBLICATIONS
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Questions and Answers Regarding 2 CFR Part 200, March 17, 2016
WEB SITES
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
Education Audit Appeals Panel: http://www.eaap.ca.gov
Office of Management and Budget, Uniform Guidance: https://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_docs
State Controller's Office: http://www.sco.ca.gov
System for Award Management (SAM): www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/##11
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov
U.S. Government Accountability Office: http://www.gao.gov

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regulation
approved: October 11, 2016 Sierraville, California

Loyalton, California

http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.eaap.ca.gov
www.whitehouse.gov/omb/grants_docs
http://www.sco.ca.gov
www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/##11
http://www.ed.gov
http://www.gao.gov


Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3230(a)

FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS

Note: The following administrative regulation reflects the major requirements of the Office of Management and Budget's
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (commonly called
"Uniform Guidance"), as specified in 2 CFR 200.0-200.521 and Appendices I-XII, which governs the use of federal
formula and discretionary grant funds awarded to districts.

Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.302, 200.318, and 200.319, the district is mandated to adopt written procedures related to
procurement, conflict of interest, cash management, payments, and allowable costs. It is recommended that the district
expand the following regulation and/or maintain a comprehensive procedures manual which contains internal controls
and grant management standards used by the district to ensure the lawful expenditure of federal funds, including, but not
limited to, procedures and protocols for cash management, procurement, inventory management, allowability of
expenditures, "time and effort" reporting by personnel, and record retention.

Allowable Costs

Note:  2 CFR 200.302 mandates that districts develop written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in
accordance with 2 CFR 200.400-200.475 and the terms and conditions of the federal grant award. Districts may revise
this section or their detailed procedures manual to reflect those requirements.

Prior to obligating or spending any federal grant funds, the Superintendent or designee shall determine
whether a proposed purchase is an allowable expenditure of federal funds in accordance with 2 CFR
200.400-200.475 and the terms and conditions of the federal grant award.  He/she shall also determine
whether the expense is a direct or indirect cost as defined in 2 CFR 200.413 and 200.414 and, if the
purchase will benefit other programs not included in the grant award, the appropriate share to be
allocated to the federal grant.

(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses)

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 42126 which requires the Superintendent of Public Instruction to prescribe a uniform
format for district budgets, districts are required to use the Standardized Account Code Structure (SACS). SACS ensures
that districts meet state and federal reporting guidelines and comply with generally accepted accounting principles
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  The California Department of Education's California
School Accounting Manual provides guidance regarding coding of revenues and expenditures. In March 2016, the State
Board of Education approved recommended changes to the California School Accounting Manual that reflect the Uniform
Guidance.

The Superintendent or designee shall review and approve all transactions involving federal grant funds
and shall ensure the proper coding of expenditures consistent with the California School Accounting
Manual.

(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services)

Period of Performance

Note: Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.343, any federal funds that are not obligated or paid within the appropriate timeframes must
be returned to the awarding agency. Thus, districts should closely monitor spending throughout the grant cycle.



All obligations of federal funds shall occur on or between the beginning and ending dates of the grant
project and shall be paid no later than 90 days after the end of the funding period, unless specifically
authorized by the grant award to be carried over beyond the initial term of the grant. (2 CFR 200.77,
200.308, 200.309, 200.343)

Procurement

Note: 2 CFR 200.110, as amended by 80 Fed. Reg. 54407, authorizes districts to delay implementation of the procurement
standards in the Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200.317-200.326) until July 1, 2017 or such later date as may be approved in
the Uniform Guidance. Districts that choose to delay implementation are mandated to document this decision in their
procurement policies, as provided in the following paragraph. Other districts should delete the date in the following
paragraph.

On or before July 1, 2017, or such later date as may be approved in the Uniform Guidance, the
Superintendent or designee shall comply with the standards specified in 2 CFR 200.317-200.326 and
Appendix II of Part 200 when procuring goods and services needed to carry out a federal grant as well
as any more restrictive state laws and district policies concerning the procurement of goods and services.

As appropriate to encourage greater economy and efficiency, the Superintendent or designee shall avoid
acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items, give consideration to consolidating or breaking out
procurements, analyze lease versus purchase alternatives, consider entering into an interagency
agreement for procurement of common or shared goods and services, and/or use federal excess or surplus
property.  (2 CFR 200.318)

Note: 2 CFR 200.318 mandates that districts have written procedures that address all applicable laws regarding the use
of federal grant funds in procurement transactions. The U.S. Department of Education's (USDOE) Questions and Answers
Regarding 2 CFR Part 200 clarifies that such procedures must address issues related to the bid process (e.g., source
evaluation, protests, and claims) since 2 CFR 200.318 provides that the district is solely responsible for settlement of all
contractual and administrative issues arising out the procurement process.

The following list reflects major requirements contained in the Uniform Guidance. Districts may revise the following list
or the district's comprehensive procedures manual to include additional detail, such as a description of the documents that
will be used (e.g., purchase order, requisition), staff responsibilities, and the process for soliciting and receiving bids.

The procurement of goods or services with federal funds shall be conducted in a manner that provides
full and open competition in accordance with state laws and district regulations and the following
requirements:

Note: 2 CFR 200.67 permits districts to establish simplified procurement procedures for "micro-purchases," defined, as
described in item #1 below. Pursuant to 48 CFR 2.101, the threshold for such purchases is $3,500 except as otherwise
specified, and will be periodically adjusted for inflation. Use of the simplified procedures requires that the district
determine the price to be "reasonable." According to the USDOE's Questions and Answers Regarding 2 CFR Part 200, a
documented review of web sites would meet this requirement.

The "small purchases" limit under the Uniform Guidance (item #2 below) is $150,000. However, the more restrictive
California bid limits and district procurement policies must be applied to define the "small purchase" requirements.

Any purchases above the California bid limits (see BP/AR 3311 - Bids) must follow California law.

1. Any purchase of supplies or services that does not exceed the "micro-purchase" threshold
specified in 48 CFR 2.101 may be awarded without soliciting competitive quotes, provided that



the district considers the price to be reasonable and maintains written evidence of this
reasonableness in the record of all micro-purchases. (2 CFR 200.67, 200.320)

2. For any purchase that exceeds the micro-purchase threshold but is less than the bid limit required
by Public Contract Code 20111, the Superintendent or designee shall utilize "small-purchase"
procedures that include obtaining price or rate quotes from an adequate number of qualified
sources.  (2 CFR 200.320)

3. Contracts for goods or services over the bid limits required by Public Contract Code 20111 shall
be awarded pursuant to California law and AR 3311 - Bids, unless exempt from bidding under
the law.

(cf. 3311 - Bids)

4. If a purchase is exempt from bidding and the district's solicitation is by a request for proposals,
the award may be made by either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type contract awarded to
the entity whose proposal is most advantageous to the program, with price and other factors
considered. (2 CFR 200.320)

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)

5. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (sole sourcing) may be used only when the item is
available from a single source, the need or emergency will not permit a delay resulting from
competitive solicitation, the awarding agency expressly authorizes sole sourcing in response to
the district's request, and/or competition is determined inadequate after solicitation of a number
of sources. (2 CFR 200.320)

6. Time and materials type contracts may be used only after a determination that no other contract
is suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor exceeds at its own risk.
Time and materials type contract means a contract whose
cost is the sum of the actual cost of materials and direct labor hours charged at fixed hourly rates
that reflect wages, general administrative expenses, and profit.  (200.328)

Note: 2 CFR 200.213 restricts districts from procuring goods or services from entities that have been suspended or
otherwise excluded from participation in federal assistance programs or activities. Districts may require certification of
eligibility from the vendor or use the federal System for Award Management web site to determine whether a particular
entity has been excluded.

For any purchase of $25,000 or more, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that any vendor which
is used to procure goods or services is not excluded or disqualified by the federal government.  (2 CFR
180.220, 200.213)

Note: 2 CFR 200.319 mandates that districts have written procedures for procurement transactions that include the
following components.

All solicitations shall incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements for the
material, product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, in competitive procurements,
contain features which unduly restrict competition. The description shall avoid detailed product
specifications to the extent possible, but may include a statement of the qualitative nature of the material,
product, or service to be procured and, when necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential
characteristics and standards to which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. When it is



impractical or not economical to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a
brand name or equivalent description may be used to define the performance or other salient
requirements of procurement, clearly stating the specific features of the named brand which must be met
by offers. In addition, every solicitation shall identify all requirements which the offer must fulfill and
any other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.  (2 CFR 200.319)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain sufficient records to document the procurement,
including, but not limited to, the rationale for the method of procurement, selection of the contract type,
contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract price. (2 CFR 200.318)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all contracts for purchases using federal grant funds
contain the applicable contract provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200 - Contract Provisions for
Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards.  (2 CFR 200.326)

Capital Expenditures

Note: 2 CFR 200.313 and 200.439 require a district receiving federal grant funds to obtain prior written approval from
the awarding agency before incurring the cost of a capital expenditure, as defined in 2 CFR 200.12 and 200.13. See AR
3512 - Equipment for further information about requirements related to equipment purchased with federal funds, including
labeling, maintenance, inventory, and continued use of the equipment after the program continues to be supported by
federal funds.

The Superintendent or designee shall obtain prior written approval from the awarding agency before
using federal funds to make capital expenditures, including the acquisition of land, facilities, equipment,
and intellectual property and expenditures to make additions, improvements, modifications,
replacements, rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations, or alterations to capital assets that materially
increase their value or useful life. (2 CFR 200.12, 200.13, 200.20, 200.33, 200.48, 200.58, 200.89,
200.313, 200.439)

Conflict of Interest

Note: 2 CFR 200.318 mandates that districts maintain written standards of conduct covering conflicts of interest and the
performance of employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts.

No Governing Board member, district employee, or district representative shall participate in the
selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he/she has a real or
apparent conflict of interest, such as when he/she or a member of his/her immediate family, his/her
partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of them has a financial interest in
or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. Such persons are prohibited from
soliciting or accepting gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or
subcontractors unless the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. (2 CFR 200.318)

Employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts shall also comply with BB
9270 - Conflict of Interest.

(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest)

Cash Management



Note: Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.302, districts are mandated to develop written procedures to implement the requirements
of 2 CFR 200.305.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the district's compliance with 2 CFR 200.305 pertaining to
payments and cash management, including compliance with applicable methods and procedures that
minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds to the district and the district's disbursement of
funds.  (2 CFR 200.305)

Note: Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.305, a district may be paid in advance by the awarding agency if it maintains written
procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds and disbursement by the district as well as
financial management systems that meet the standards for fund control and accountability as established in the Uniform
Guidance.

When authorized by law, the district may receive advance payments of federal grant funds, limited to
the minimum amounts needed and timed in accordance with the actual immediate cash requirements of
the district for carrying out the purpose of the program or project. Except under specified conditions, the
district shall maintain the advance payments in an interest-bearing account. The district shall remit
interest earned on the advanced payment to the awarding agency on an annual basis, but may retain
interest amounts specified in 2 CFR 200.305 for administrative expenses.  (2 CFR 200.305)

When required by the awarding agency, the district shall instead submit a request for reimbursement of
actual expenses incurred.  The district may also request reimbursement as an alternative to receiving
advance payments.   (2 CFR 200.305)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain source documentation supporting the expenditure of
federal funds, such as invoices, time sheets, payroll stubs, or other appropriate documentation.

Personnel

Note: In order to charge staff compensation as an allowable expense of federal grant funds pursuant to 2 CFR 200.430,
employees must document the amount of time they spend on grant activities supported by federal funds. These documents,
known as "time and effort" records, are used to charge the costs of personnel compensation to federal grants. It is
recommended that the district's administrative regulation reflect district practice for documenting time and effort, such as
the type of documentation maintained, signature requirements, how often certifications will be completed, and review of
the records by a supervisor.

All district employees who are paid in full or in part with federal funds, including employees whose
salary is paid with state or local funds but is used to meet a required match or in-kind contribution to a
federal program, shall document the amount of time they spend on grant activities. (2 CFR 200.430)

Records

Except as otherwise provided in 2 CFR 200.333, or where state law or district policy requires a longer
retention period, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other district records
related to a federal award shall be retained for a period of three years from the date of submission of the
final expenditure report or, for a federal award that is renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of
the submission of the quarterly or annual financial report. (2 CFR 200.333)

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)



Audits

Note: Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.501, districts that expend $750,000 or more in federal grant funds during a fiscal year must
have a single audit conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200.514, unless it chooses to have a program-specific audit
conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200.507. The USDOE's Questions and Answers Regarding 2 CFR Part 200 confirms
that compliance with the audit requirements in the Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200.500-200.521) must begin with the audit
of the district's first fiscal year starting on or after December 26, 2014. Thus, for districts whose fiscal year begins on July
1, the first audit subject to the Uniform Guidance would be for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. Pursuant to 2 CFR
200.512, the audit must be submitted within the earlier of 30 calendar days after receipt of the auditor's report(s) or nine
months after the end of the audit period. For fiscal year ending June 30, 2016, the latest deadline is March 31, 2017.

Districts that expend more than $50 million in federal funds are subject to the requirements specified in 2 CFR 200.513.

District audits are also subject to the requirements in Education Code 41020, the state Education Audit Appeal Panel's
Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, and the California
Department of Education Audit Guide. See BP/AR 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability for further information
about audit requirements.

Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.501, districts that expend less than $750,000 in federal grant funds per fiscal year are exempt from
federal audit requirements but must make records available for review or audit by the awarding agency, the pass-through
entity, and U.S. Government Accountability Office. Such districts may delete the following section.

Whenever the district expends $750,000 or more in federal grant funds during a fiscal year, it shall
arrange for either a single audit or a program-specific audit in accordance with 2 CFR 200.507 or
200.514.  (2 CFR 200.501)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the audit meets the requirements specified in 2 CFR
200.500-200.521.

Specified records pertaining to the audit of federal funds expended by the district shall be transmitted to
the clearinghouse designated by the federal Office of Management and Budget and shall be made
available for public inspection. Such records shall be transmitted within 30 days after receipt of the
auditor's report or within nine months after the end of the audit period, whichever is sooner, unless a
longer period is agreed to in advance by the federal agency or a different period is specified in a program-
specific audit guide. (2 CFR 200.512)

In the event that the audit identifies any deficiency, the Superintendent or designee shall promptly act to
either correct the identified deficiency, produce recommended improvements, or demonstrate that the
audit finding is invalid or does not warrant action. (2 CFR 200.26, 200.508, 200.511)

Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE
approved: September 2016



1 
 

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD 

Board Policy 
Sale And Disposal Of Books, Equipment And Supplies 
 
Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3270 
 
SALE AND DISPOSAL OF BOOKS, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES 
 

Note: The following policy and administrative regulation address the sale and disposal of district-owned personal property, such 
as instructional materials, equipment, and supplies.  For policy on the sale or lease of surplus real property, see BP 3280 - Sale 
or Lease of District-Owned Real Property. 

The Governing Board recognizes its fiscal responsibility to maximize the use of district equipment, supplies, 
instructional materials, and other personal property while providing up-to-date resources that facilitate student 
learning and effective district operations. When the Board, upon recommendation of the Superintendent or 
designee, declares any district-owned personal property unusable, obsolete, or no longer needed, the Board 
shall determine the estimated value of the property and shall decide whether the property will be donated, sold, 
or otherwise disposed of  as prescribed  by law and administrative regulation.  
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 3512 - Equipment) 
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 
 
The Board shall approve the price and terms of any sale or lease of personal property of the district. 
 
If the Board members who are in attendance at a meeting unanimously agree that the property, whether one or 
more items, does not exceed $2,500 in value, the property may be sold without advertising for bids.  (Education 
Code 17546) 
 
(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board) 
 
If the Board members who are in attendance at a meeting unanimously find that the value of the property is 
insufficient to defray the costs of arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization 
deemed appropriate by the Board or may be disposed for by dumping recycling or disposal at a facility 
equipped for such purposes on order of any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. 
(Education Code 17546) 
 

Note: Education Code 60510-60530 establish conditions for the sale or disposal of obsolete instructional materials depending on 
whether such materials are usable or unusable for educational purposes; see the section "Instructional Materials" in the 
accompanying administrative regulation. The following optional paragraph prescribes criteria for determining when instructional 
materials are obsolete or unusable, and may be revised to reflect district practice.  

Instructional materials shall be considered obsolete or unusable by the district if they have been replaced by 
more recent editions or new materials selected by the Board, are not aligned with the district's academic 
standards or course of study, and have no foreseeable value in other instructional areas. Such materials may 
be sold or donated if they continue to serve educational purposes that would benefit others outside the district. 
Instructional materials are not appropriate for sale or donation if they meet any of the following criteria: 
 
1. Contain information rendered inaccurate or incomplete by new research or technologies 
 
 



2 
 
2. Contain demeaning, stereotyping, or patronizing references to any group of persons protected against 

discrimination by law or Board policy 
 
3. Are damaged beyond use or repair 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 

Note:  Pursuant to 2 CFR 200.313, equipment or supplies acquired under a federal grant or subgrant may be retained, sold, or 
otherwise disposed of, with no further obligation to the awarding federal agency, when they are no longer needed for the original 
project or program or for other federally supported activities.  However, when the current per-unit fair market value of the 
equipment or the residual inventory of the unused supplies is $5,000 or more, the federal agency that provided the grant or 
subgrant shall be entitled to a share of the current market value of the equipment, if retained, or the proceeds from its sale, and 
to compensation for its share of the unused supplies. See the accompanying administrative regulation. 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures to be used whenever the district sells equipment or 
supplies originally acquired under a federal grant or subgrant. Such procedures shall be designed to ensure the 
highest possible return.  (342 CFR 80.32200.313) 
 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
(cf. 3440 - Inventories) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
17540-17542  Sale or lease of personal property by one district to another 
17545-17555  Sale of personal property 
35168  Inventory, including record of time and mode of disposal 
60510-60530  Sale, donation, or disposal of instructional materials 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
25505  District property; disposition; proceeds 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3944  Consolidated categorical programs, district title to equipment 
3946  Disposal of equipment purchased with state and federal consolidated application funds 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 40 
549  Surplus property 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 342 

80.32-80.33  Equipment and supplies acquired under a grant or subgrant 
200.0-200.521  Federal uniform grant guidance 

Management Resources: 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School Accounting Manual 
Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2013 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
School Services of California, Inc.: http://www.sscal.com 

 
 SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
adopted:  April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California 
revised:   November 10, 2015 Loyalton, California 
revised:   October 11, 2016 



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3270(a)

SALE AND DISPOSAL OF BOOKS, EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES

Note: The following administrative regulation addresses the sale and disposal of district-owned personal property, such
as instructional materials, equipment, and supplies. For procedures regarding the disposal of real property, see BP/AR
3280 - Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property.

Instructional Materials

Note: Education Code 60510-60530 address the sale or disposal of surplus or undistributed obsolete instructional
materials that are either usable or unusable for educational purposes. See the accompanying Board policy for language
regarding the determination of instructional materials as obsolete or unusable.

Surplus or undistributed obsolete instructional materials that are usable for educational purposes may be
sold by the district. Alternatively, such materials may be donated to:  (Education Code 60510)

1. Another district, county free library, or other state institution

2. A United States public agency or institution

3. A nonprofit charitable organization

4. Children or adults in California or foreign countries for the purpose of increasing the general
literacy of the people

(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan)
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials)
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers)

Any organization, agency, or institution receiving obsolete instructional materials donated by the district
shall certify to the Governing Board that it agrees to make no charge to any persons to whom it gives or
lends these materials.  (Education Code 60511)

Note: Education Code 60510.5 encourages, but does not require, districts to take actions described in the following
optional paragraph.

At least 60 days before selling or donating surplus or undistributed obsolete instructional materials, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify the public of the district's intention to do so through a public
service announcement on a local television station, in a local newspaper, or by other means that will
most effectively reach the entities described above.

Representatives of those entities and members of the public also shall be notified of the opportunity to
address the Board regarding the distribution of these materials.

(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)



Surplus or undistributed obsolete instructional materials which are unusable or which cannot be
distributed as specified above may be disposed of by either of the following: (Education Code 60530)

1. Mutilated as not to be salable as instructional materials and sold for scrap or for use in the
manufacture of paper pulp or other substances at the highest obtainable price

2. Destroyed by any economical means, provided that the materials are not destroyed until at least
30 days after the district has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice

(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations)
(cf. 3511.1 - Integrated Waste Management)

Equipment/Supplies Acquired with Federal Funds

Note: 2 CFR 200.313-200.314 address the sale or disposal of equipment and supplies that were acquired under a federal
grant or subgrant. See BP 3512 - Equipment for additional requirements pertaining to the management of such equipment
and supplies.

When the district has a need to replace equipment originally purchased with funds from a federal grant
or subgrant, it may, subject to the approval of the agency that awarded the grant, trade in the original
equipment or sell the property and use the proceeds to offset the cost of the replacement property.  (342
CFR 80.32200.313)

(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds)

When any original or replacement equipment or supplies acquired under a federal grant or subgrant are
no longer needed for the original project or program or for other federally supported activities, the district
may retain or sell such items or, if the item has a current fair market value of less than $5,000, may
otherwise dispose of the item in a manner approved by the Board. Whenever the district sells equipment
or supplies that have a current fair market value of $5,000 or more, it shall provide an amount to the
federal agency equal to the agency's share of the current market value of the equipment or the proceeds
from the sale of the equipment or supplies.  (342 CFR 80.32-80.33200.313, 200.314)

In the event that the district is provided equipment that is federally owned, the district shall request
disposition instructions from the federal agency when it no longer needs the equipment.  (342 CFR
80.32200.313)

Other Personal Property

The district may sell other surplus or obsolete district-owned personal property through any of the
following methods:

1. The Superintendent or designee may advertise for bids by posting a notice in at least three public
places in the district for at least two weeks, or by publishing a notice at least once a week for at
least two weeks in a newspaper having a general circulation in the district and, if possible,
publishing within the district. The district shall sell the property to the highest responsible bidder
or shall reject all bids.  (Education Code 17545, 17548)



Property for which no qualified bid has been received may be sold, without further advertising,
by the Superintendent or designee.  (Education Code 17546)

(cf. 3311 - Bids)

2. The property may be sold by means of a public auction conducted by district employees,
employees of other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm.   (Education Code
17545)

3. The district may sell the property without advertising for bids under any of the following
conditions:

Note: Pursuant to Education Code 17546, advertising without bids is authorized when the Governing Board members
attending a meeting unanimously agree that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed $2,500 in value;
see the accompanying Board policy.

a. The Board members in attendance at a meeting have unanimously determined that the
property does not exceed $2,500 in value.  (Education Code 17546)

(cf. 9323.2 - Actions by the Board)

Note: Education Code 17540 authorizes the sale of property to government agencies eligible under the federal surplus
property law, renumbered as 40 USC 549.

b. The district sells the property to agencies of the federal, state, or local government, to any
other school district, or to any agency eligible under the federal surplus property law and
the sale price equals the cost of the property plus the estimated cost of purchasing, storing,
and handling.  (Education Code 17540; 40 USC 549)

c. The district sells or leases the property to agencies of the federal, state, or local
government or to any other school district and the price and terms of the
sale or lease are fixed by the Board and approved by the County Superintendent of
Schools.  (Education Code 17542)

Money received from the sale of surplus personal property shall be either deposited in the district reserve
or general fund or credited to the fund from which the original purchase was made.  (Education Code
17547)

(cf. 3100 - Budget)
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:     November 10, 2015 Loyalton, California
revised:     October 11, 2016



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3440(a)

INVENTORIES

Note:  Education Code 35168 requires the Governing Board to establish and maintain an inventory of all items of equipment
with a current market value above $500, as provided in item #1 below.  Generally, the Board delegates this authority to the
Superintendent or designee.
R 200.313 requires that districts conduct inventories of equipment acquired in whole or in part with federal grant funds, and 2
CFR 200.33 defines "equipment" as  personal property having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost that
exceeds $5,000 or the capitalization level established by the district for financial statement purposes, whichever is less. In the
state's Federal Program Monitoring (FPM) process, the California Department of Education (CDE) reviews whether the district
maintains an inventory record for each item of equipment with an acquisition cost of $500 or more per unit that is purchased
with state and/or federal categorical funds. Thus, it is recommended that districts maintain inventories of equipment with an
acquisition cost of $500 or more per unit, as provided in item #2 below.
The district may specify lower amounts for items #1 and #2 below.
Note that the acquisition cost threshold amount established for the equipment inventory need not be the same as the threshold
amount established for identifying capital assets for accounting purposes; see BP 3400 - Management of District
Assets/Accounts. As explained in the CDE's California School Accounting Manual, all capitalized items should be inventoried,
but not all inventoried items should be capitalized.

In order to provide for the proper tracking and control and conservation of district property, the
Superintendent or designee shall maintain an inventory of equipment in accordance with law for the
following:

1. All equipment items currently valued in excess of $500 (Education Code 35168)

2. All equipment items purchased with state and/or federal categorical funds that have a useful life of
more than one year with an acquisition cost per unit of $5,000500 or more per unit

(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests)
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts)
(cf. 3512 - Equipment)

Note: The following optional paragraph may be revised to reflect district practice. According to the California School
Accounting Manual, some districts choose to inventory certain items, such as computers, audiovisual equipment, and furniture,
even if their cost is lower than the threshold defined by law.

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may maintain a list of specific items which shall be inventoried
for internal control purposes regardless of their initial cost or current value.

The inventory shall contain a record of the following information:  (Education Code 35168; 5 CCR 3946)

1. Name and description of the property

2. Identification number

3). Original cost of the item of equipment or a reasonable estimate if the original cost is unknown

4. Date of acquisition



2

5. Location of use

6. The date and method of disposal
(cf. 3270 - Sale and Disposal of Books, Equipment and Supplies)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain an inventory of all property.  The following information must
be recorded: (Education Code 35168)
1.
2.  Name of titleholder
3.  Serial number or other identification number
4.  Cost of the property (a reasonable estimate may be used if original cost is unknown)
5.  Acquisition date
6.  Location of use
7.  Any ultimate disposition data including the date and method of disposal and sale price

Note: Items #1-5 below are for use by districts that have used state and/or federal categorical funds to purchase equipment with
an initial cost over the threshold established by law or the district.  The district may merge this list into the list above in order
to provide consistent procedures for all district equipment.

In addition to the information specified in items #1above, the following information must also shall be
recorded for items equipment acquired with state and/or federal categorical funds:  (34 unless
otherwise specified in law:  (5 CCR 3946; 2 CFR 80.32200.313)

1. Source of the property (funding source)

2. 2. Titleholder

3. Percentage of federal participation in the cost of the property

4. Use and condition of property

5. Sale price of the property upon disposition and method used to determine current fair market value
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds)

At the time of purchase, the Superintendent or designee shall affix a label to the equipment containing the
identification number and the district name.  Equipment items purchased with categorical program funds
shall also be labeled with the name of the project in accordance with 5 CCR 3946.

Whenever an equipment item is moved to a new location or the equipment is used for a new purpose, the
new location or purpose shall be recorded in the inventory.

Note: 5 CCR 3946 requires that the inventory of equipment purchased with state and/or federal categorical funds be maintained
at the district office and appropriate school site.  The following optional paragraph has been expanded to apply to all inventories
conducted by the district and may be revised to reflect district practice.

A copy of the inventory shall be kept at the district office and at the appropriate school site.
(cf. 3580 - District Records)



3

The Superintendent or designee shall annually submit an inventory listing of federally owned property in its
custody to the federal agency that granted the award. (2 CFR 200.312)

Physical Inventory

Note: The FPM process for both state and federal categorical programs includes a determination as to whether the district has
conducted a physical inventory of equipment within the past two years in accordance with 2 CFR 200.313 as provided below.
The California School Accounting Manual recommends that districts conduct a physical inventory at least once a year. The
district may revise the following paragraph to specify a timeline shorter than two years.

At least once every two years, a physical inventory of equipment shall be conducted and the results reconciled
with the property records. (342 CFR 80.32200.313)

Each school shall maintain a copy of its inventory and provide a copy of this inventory to the district office.
Copies of all district inventories shall be kept at the district office.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for conducting the physical inventory which shall
include, but not be limited to, designation of person(s) responsible for coordinating and conducting the
inventory, preparation and distribution of count sheets, procedures for implementing the inventory, and
procedures for conducting a recount to substantiate the validity of the inventory.

The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any differences between the quantities determined by the
physical inspection and those in the accounting records.

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
35168  Inventory of equipment
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
3946  Control, safeguards, disposal of equipment purchased with consolidated application funds
16022-16023 Classification of records
16035  Historical inventory of equipment
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
2301-24712414 Carl D. Perkins VocationalCareer and Technical Education Act

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 342
200.0-200.521  Federal uniform grant guidance

Management Resources:
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
California School Accounting Manual, 2008
WEB SITES
California Association of School Business Officials: http//www.casbo.org
School Services of California, Inc.: http://www.sscal.com
Office of Management and Budget: https://www.whitehouse.gov/omb

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
Regulation SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: October 11, 2016 Loyalton, California

www.casbo.org
http://www.sscal.com
www.whitehouse.gov/omb


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3460

FINANCIAL REPORTS AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Interim Reports

Each interim fiscal report developed pursuant to Education Code 42130 shall include an assessment of the
district budget as revised to reflect current information regarding the adopted state budget, district property
tax revenues, if any, and ending balances for the preceding fiscal year. (Education Code 42130, 42131)

The interim reports shall be based on State Board of Education (SBE) criteria and standards which address
fund and cash balances, reserves, deficit spending, estimation of average daily attendance (ADA), projected
enrollment, ratio of ADA to enrollment, projected local control funding formula (LCFF) revenue, salaries
and benefits, other revenues and expenditures, and facilities maintenance. For purposes of assessing
projections of LCFF revenue, the first interim report shall be compared to the adopted district budget, and
the second interim report shall be compared to the projections in the first interim report. (Education Code
42130; 5 CCR 15453-15464)
(cf. 3100 - Budget)
(cf. 3220.1 - Lottery Funds)
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases)
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services)

The report shall also provide supplemental information regarding contingent liabilities, use of one-time
revenues for ongoing expenditures, contingent revenues, contributions (i.e., projected contributions from
unrestricted general fund resources to restricted general fund resources, projected transfers to or from the
general fund to cover operating deficits in the general fund or any other fund, and capital project cost overruns
that may impact the general fund budget), long-term commitments, unfunded liabilities, temporary interfund
borrowings, the status of labor agreements, and the status of other funds.  (Education Code 42130; 5 CCR
15453, 15464)
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds)

Audit Report

The Superintendent or designee shall establish a timetable for the completion and review of the annual audit
within the deadlines established by law.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide the necessary financial records and cooperate with the auditor
selected by the Governing Board of Education to ensure that the audit report contains all information required
by law and the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The audit shall include an audit of income and expenditures by source of funds for all funds of the district,
including the student body and cafeteria funds and accounts, state and federal grant funds, and any other
funds under the control or jurisdiction of the district, as well as an audit of student attendance procedures.
The audit shall also include a determination of whether LCFF funds were expended in accordance with the
district's local control and accountability plan or an approved annual update of the plan. (Education Code
41020)
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)



2

(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds)
(cf. 3430 - Investing)
(cf. 3451 - Petty Cash Funds)
(cf. 3452 - Student Activity Funds)
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund)

If the district participates in the school district of choice program to accept interdistrict transfers, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify the auditor, prior to the commencement of the audit, that the audit
must include a review of the district's compliance with specified program requirements.  (Education Code
48301)
(cf. 5117 - Interdistrict Attendance)

When required by federal law, specified records pertaining to the audit of federal funds received and
expended by the district shall be transmitted to the federal clearinghouse designated by the federal Office of
Management and Budget and shall be made available for public inspection. Such records shall be transmitted
within 30 days after receipt of the auditor's report or within nine months after the end of the fiscal year,
whichever is sooner, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the federal agency or a different period
is specified in a program-specific audit guide.  (31 USC 7502)

If an audit finding results in the district being required to repay an apportionment or pay a penalty, the district
may appeal the finding to the Education Audit Appeals Panel by making an informal summary appeal within
30 days of receiving the final audit report or initiating a formal appeal within 60 days of receiving the report.
(Education Code 41344, 41344.1)

While a public accounting firm is performing the audit of the district, it shall not provide any nonauditing,
management, or other consulting services for the district except as provided in Government Auditing
Standards, Amendment #3, published by the U.S. Government Accountability Office.  (Education Code
41020)

Fund Balance

In accordance with GASB Statement 54, external financial reports shall report fund balances in the general
fund within the following classifications based on the relative strength of constraints placed on the purposes
for which resources can be used:

1. Nonspendable fund balance, including amounts that are not expected to be converted to cash, such as
resources that are not in a spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact

2. Restricted fund balance, including amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers or by
law

3. Committed fund balance, including amounts constrained to specific purposes by the Board

4. Assigned fund balance, including amounts which the Board or its designee intends to use for a specific
purpose

5. Unassigned fund balance, including amounts that are available for any purpose

Negative Balance Report

Whenever the district reports a negative unrestricted fund balance or a negative cash balance in its annual
budget or annual audit report, it shall include in the budget a statement that identifies the reasons for the



3

negative unrestricted fund balance or negative cash balance and the steps that have been taken to ensure that
the negative balance will not occur at the end of the current fiscal year.  (Education Code 42127.5)

Non-Voter-Approved Debt Report

Upon approval by the Board to proceed with the issuance of revenue bonds or any agreement for financing
school construction pursuant to Education Code 17170-17199.5, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the County Superintendent of Schools and the county auditor. The Superintendent or designee shall provide
the Board, the county auditor, the County Superintendent, and the public with related repayment schedules
and evidence of the district's ability to repay the obligation.  (Education Code 17150)
(cf. 7214 - General Obligation Bonds)

When the Board is considering the issuance of certificates of participation and other debt instruments that are
secured by real property and do not require the approval of the voters of the district, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide notice to the County Superintendent and county auditor no later than 30 days before
the Board's approval to proceed with issuance.  The Superintendent or designee shall provide the Board, the
county auditor, the County Superintendent, and the public with information necessary to assess the
anticipated effect of the debt issuance, including related repayment schedules, evidence of the district's ability
to repay the obligation, and the issuance costs. (Education Code 17150.1)

Other Postemployment Benefits Report
In accordance with GASB Statement 4575, the district's financial statements shall report the annual expense
of nonpension other postemployment benefits (OPEBs) on an accrual basis over retirees' active working
lifetime, as determined by a qualified actuary procured by the Superintendent or designee. To the extent that
these OPEBs are not prefunded, the district shall report a liability on its financial statements.
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits)
(cf. 9250 - Remuneration, Reimbursement and Other Benefits)

The Superintendent or designee shall annually present the estimated accrued but unfunded cost of OPEBs
and the actuarial report upon which those costs are based at a public meeting of the Board. (Ed Code 42140)

The district's financial obligation for OPEBs shall be reevaluated every two or three years in accordance with
GASB 45 depending on the number of members in the OPEB plan75.

Workers' Compensation Claims Report

The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide the Board, at a public meeting, information and related
actuarial reports showing the estimated accrued but unfunded cost of workers' compensation claims. The
estimate of costs shall be based on an actuarial report completed at least every three years by a qualified
actuary.  (Education Code 42141)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:  June 14, 2011
revised:  May 13, 2014 Loyalton, California
revised:  October 11, 2016



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy
Nondiscrimination/Harassment

Students BP 5145.3

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT

The Board of Education The Governing Board desires to provide a safe school environment that
allows all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic, extracurricular, and
other educational support programs, services, and activities. The Board prohibits, at any district
school or school activity, unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, and bullying of, targeted at any student by anyone, based on the student's actual or
perceived race, color, ancestry, national origin, nationality, ethnicity, ethnic group identification,
age, religion, marital or parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation,
gender, gender identity, or gender expression or association with a person or group with one or
more of these actual or perceived characteristics.

Note:  Education Code 234.1 prohibits unlawful discrimination in school-related activities and when it affects
school attendance.  However, OCR has clarified in several publications that conduct that occurs off campus may
have an adverse effect on a student at school (i.e., create a "hostile environment" for the student).  When that
happens, the district has an obligation to investigate and to take steps to protect the student.

This policy shall apply to all acts related to school activity or to school attendance occurring within
a district school.  (Education Code 234.1), and to acts which occur off campus or outside of school-
related or school-sponsored activities but which may have an impact or create a hostile
environment at school.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)
(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

Unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying,
includesmay result from physical, verbal, nonverbal, or written conduct based on any of the
categories listed above. Unlawful discrimination also shall include includes the creation of a
hostile environment when thethrough prohibited conduct that is so severe, persistent, or pervasive
that it affects a student's ability to participate in or benefit from an educational program or activity;
creates an intimidating, threatening, hostile, or offensive educational environment; has the effect
of substantially or unreasonably interfering with a student's academic performance; or otherwise
adversely affects a student's educational opportunities.



2

Unlawful discrimination also includes disparate treatment of students based on one of the
categories above with respect to the provision of opportunities to participate in school programs
or activities or the provision or receipt of educational benefits or services.

The Board also prohibits any form of retaliation against any individual who reports or participates
in the reporting of unlawful discrimination, files or otherwise participates in the filing orof a
complaint, or investigates or participates in the investigation of a complaint or report regarding an
incident ofalleging unlawful discrimination. Retaliation complaints shall be investigated and
resolved in the same manner as a discrimination complaint.

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 234.1 and 34 CFR 106.8, a district is required to adopt and publicize its
nondiscrimination policies to the school community. The following paragraph may be modified to reflect district
practice.

In addition, in its October 2010 Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, OCR identifies training of the
school community as one of the key measures for minimizing discriminatory and harassing behavior in school.
See the accompanying administrative regulation for specific measures to prevent discrimination and facilitate
students' access to the educational program.

The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate students' access to the educational program by
publicizing the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures to students,
parents/guardians, and employees. He/she may provide training and information on the scope and
use of the policy and complaint procedures and take other measures designed to increase the school
community's understanding of the requirements of law related to discrimination. The
Superintendent or designee shall regularly review the implementation of the district's
nondiscrimination policies and practices and, as necessary, shall take action to remove any
identified barrier to student access to or participation in the district's educational program. He/she
shall report his/her findings and recommendations to the Board after each review.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)
(cf. 1330 - Use of Facilities)
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

Regardless of whether a complainant complies with the writing, timeline, and/or other formal filing
requirements, all complaints alleging unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, or bullying, shall be investigated and prompt action taken to stop the
discrimination, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students.

Students who engage in unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment,
intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, in violation of law, Board policy, or administrative regulation
shall be subject to appropriate consequence or discipline, which may include suspension or
expulsion forwhen the behavior that is severe or pervasive as defined in Education Code 48900.4.
Any employee who permits or engages in prohibited discrimination, including discriminatory



3

harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall be subject to disciplinary action, up to and
including dismissal.

(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)

Record-Keeping

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of unlawful
discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying, to enable the
district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive prohibited behavior in district schools.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination
48900.3  Suspension or expulsion for act of hate violence
48900.4  Suspension or expulsion for threats or harassment
48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct
48907  Student exercise of free expression
48950  Freedom of speech
48985  Translation of notices
49020-49023  Athletic programs
51500  Prohibited instruction or activity
51501  Prohibited means of instruction
60044  Prohibited instructional materials
CIVIL CODE
1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor
PENAL CODE
422.55  Definition of hate crime
422.6  Crimes, harassment
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
432  Student record
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972
12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29
794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28
35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.31  Disclosure of personally identifiable information



4

100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin
104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504
106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX
106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex
COURT DECISIONS
Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567
Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003) 324 F.3d 1130

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming
Students, Policy Brief, February 2014
Final Guidance Regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities, March 2014
Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011
FIRST AMENDMENT CENTER PUBLICATIONS
Public Schools and Sexual Orientation: A First Amendment Framework for Finding Common Ground,
2006
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS
Dealing with Legal Matters Surrounding Students' Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity, 2004
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter:  Transgender Students, May 2016
Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016
Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015
Dear Colleague Letter:  Harassment and Bullying, October 2010
Notice of Non-Discrimination, January 1999
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov
California Safe Schools Coalition: http://www.casafeschools.org
First Amendment Center:  http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org
National School Boards Association:  http://www.nsba.org
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: September 11, 2012
revised:  June 19, 2013 Loyalton, California
revised:  March 11, 2014
revised:  December 9, 2014
revised:  October 11, 2016

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.casafeschools.org
http://www.firstamendmentcenter.org
http://www.nsba.org
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Nondiscrimination/Harassment

Students AR 5145.3

NONDISCRIMINATION/HARASSMENT

The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for coordinating the
district's efforts to comply with applicable state and federal civil rights laws, including Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans
with Disabilities Act, and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and to answer inquiries regarding the district's
nondiscrimination policies. The individual(s) shall also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR
1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures as the responsible employee to handle complaints regardingalleging
unlawful discrimination targeting a student, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying,
based on the student's actual or perceived race, color, ancestry, national origin, nationality, ethnicity, ethnic
group identification, age, religion, marital or parental status, pregnancy, physical or mental disability, sex,
sexual orientation, gender, gender identity, gender expression, or any other legally protected status; the
perception of one or more of such characteristics; or association with a person or group with one or more of
these actual or perceived characteristics. The coordinator/compliance officer(s) may be contacted at:
(Education Code 234.1; 5 CCR 4621)

Superintendent of Schools
109 Beckwith Road
Loyalton CA 96118
P. O. Box 955
530 993-1660 Ext *837
mgrant@spjusd.org

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Measures to Prevent Discrimination

To prevent unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, and
bullying, of students at district schools or in school activities and to ensure equal access of all students to the
educational program, the Superintendent or designee shall implement the following measures:

Note:  As part of its responsibility to monitor district compliance with legal requirements concerning discrimination pursuant
to Education Code 234.1, CDE is required to ensure that the district posts its nondiscrimination policies in all schools, offices,
staff lounges, and student government meeting rooms.

In addition, federal regulations enforced by OCR require the district to notify students, parents/guardians, and employees of its
policies prohibiting discrimination on the basis of sex (34 CFR 106.8), disability (34 CFR 104.7 and 28 CFR 35.107), and age
(34 CFR 110.25) and of related complaint procedures.  In its April 2015 Dear Colleague Letter: Title IX Coordinators, OCR
recommends that districts publicize their nondiscrimination notices and the full contact information for their compliance
officer(s) by posting them at prominent locations  on school web sites and making them available through social media.

Item #1 below may be revised to specify the means by which the district publicizes its nondiscrimination policies and complaint
procedures.

mailto:mgrant@spjusd.org


2

1. Publicize the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint procedures, including the
coordinator/compliance officer's contact information, to students, parents/guardians, employees,
volunteers, and the general public and post, posting them on the district's web site and other locations
that are easily accessible to students. (Education Code 234.1)prominent locations.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

2. Provide to students age-appropriate information that clearly describes the district's nondiscrimination
policy, procedures for filing a complaint, and resources available to students who feel that they have
been the victim of any such behavior.  (Education Code 234.1)

Note:  In its October 2010 Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, OCR identifies training of the school community
as one of the key measures for minimizing discriminatory and harassing behavior in school. See also CSBA's policy brief
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students. Item #3
below may be modified to reflect district practice.

3. Annually notify all students and parents/guardians of the district's nondiscrimination policy.  The
notice shall inform, including its responsibility to provide a safe, nondiscriminatory school
environment for all students and parents/guardians of the possibility that, including transgender and
gender-nonconforming students will participate in a sex-segregated school program or activity
together with another student of the opposite biological sex, and that they may inform the compliance
officer if they feel such participation would be against the student's religious beliefs and/or practices
or a violation of his/her right to privacy.  In such a case, the compliance officer shall meet with the
student and/or parent/guardian who raises the objection to determine how best to accommodate that
student.. The notice shall inform students and parents/guardians that the district will not typically
notify them ofthey may request to meet with the compliance officer to determine how best to
accommodate or resolve concerns that may arise from the district's implementation of its
nondiscrimination policies. The notice shall also inform all students and parents/guardians that, to the
extent possible, the district will address any individual instances of transgender students
participatingstudent's interests and concerns in a program or activity.private.

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

4. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including
students and parents/guardiansthose with limited English proficiency, are notified of how to access
the relevant information provided in the district's nondiscrimination policy and related complaint
procedures, notices, and forms in a language they can understand.

If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single primary
language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning
nondiscrimination shall be translated into that language in accordance with Education Code 234.1
and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant
information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency.

5. Provide to students, employees, volunteers, and parents/guardians age-appropriate training and
information regarding the district's nondiscrimination policy; what constitutes prohibited
discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying; how and
to whom a report of an incident should be made; and how to guard against segregating or stereotyping



3

students when providing instruction, guidance, supervision, or other services to them. Such training
and information shall include details of guidelines the district may use to provide a discrimination-
free environment for all district students, including transgender and gender-nonconforming students.

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

6. At the beginning of each school year, inform school employees that any employee who witnesses any
act of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying,
against a student is required to intervene if it is safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1)

Note:  Item #7 below may be revised to reflect district practice. In some situations, the district may need to provide assistance
to a student to protect him/her from harassment or bullying.  Each situation will need to be analyzed to determine the most
appropriate course of action to meet the needs of the student, based on the circumstances involved.

7. At the beginning of each school year, inform each principal or designee of the district's responsibility
to provide appropriate assistance or resources to protect students' privacy rights and ensure their safety
from threatened or potentially discriminatory behavior.

Enforcement of District Policy

The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce BP 5145.3 -
Nondiscrimination/Harassment.  As needed, these actions may include any of the following:

1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti

(cf. 5131.5 - Vandalism and Graffiti)

2. Providing training to students, staff, and parents/guardians about how to recognize unlawful
discrimination, how to report it or file a complaint, and how to respond

3. Disseminating and/or summarizing the district's policy and regulation regarding unlawful
discrimination

4. Consistent with the laws regarding the confidentiality of student and personnel records,
communicating the school's response to students, parents/guardians, and the community

(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

5. Taking appropriate disciplinary action against perpetratorsstudents, employees, and anyone
determined to have engaged in wrongdoing in violation of district policy, including any student who
is found to have madefiled a complaint of discrimination that he/she knew was not true

(cf. 4118 - Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))



4

(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

Process for Initiating and Responding to Complaints

Any student who feels that he/she has been subjected to unlawful discrimination described above or in district
policy is strongly encouraged to immediately contact the compliance officer, principal, or any other staff
member.  In addition, any student who observes any such incident is strongly encouraged to report the
incident to the compliance officer or principal, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint.

Any school employee who observes an incident of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, or to whom such an incident is reported shall report the
incident to the compliance officer or principal within a school day, whether or not the alleged victim files a
complaint.

Any school employee who witnesses an incident of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory
harassment, intimidation, retaliation, or bullying, shall immediately intervene to stop the incident when it is
safe to do so.  (Education Code 234.1)

Note:  Though a formal complaint must be in writing pursuant to 5 CCR 4600, the district's obligation to provide a safe school
environment for its students overrides the need to comply with formalities.  Thus, once the district receives notice of an incident,
whether verbally or in writing, it is good practice to begin the investigation of the report and to take steps to stop any prohibited
conduct and address any effect on students.  The following paragraph reflects such practice and is consistent with OCR
recommendation.

When anya verbal report of unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory harassment, intimidation,
retaliation, or bullying, is submittedmade to or received by the principal or compliance officer, he/she shall
informmake a note of the report and encourage the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal the
complaint in writing, pursuant to the provisions in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. Any report
of unlawful discrimination involving the principal, compliance officer, or any other person to whom the
complaint would ordinarily be reportedOnce notified verbally or filed shall be submitted to the
Superintendent or designee.  Even if the student chooses not to file a formal complaintin writing, the principal
or compliance officer shall begin the investigation and shall implement immediate measures necessary to
stop the discrimination and to ensure that all students have access to the educational program and a safe
school environment.

Upon receiving a complaint of Any interim measures adopted to address unlawful discrimination shall, to
the extent possible, not disadvantage the complainant or a student who is the victim of the alleged unlawful
discrimination, the compliance officer shall immediately investigate the complaint in accordance with the
district's uniform complaint procedures specified in AR 1312.3.

Any report or complaint alleging unlawful discrimination by the principal, compliance officer, or any other
person to whom a report would ordinarily be made or complaint filed shall instead be made to or filed with
the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be investigated.

(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

ActsTransgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students

Note:  The following section may be modified to reflect district practice.  Pursuant to Education Code 221.5, a district is required
to permit a student to use facilities and participate in sex-segregated school programs and activities consistent with the student's



5

gender identity, regardless of the gender listed on his/her educational records. The following guidelines are designed to
implement Education Code 221.5, other existing state and federal laws that prohibit discrimination and regulatory agency
guidance such as the May 2016 Dear Colleague Letter: Transgender Students jointly issued by the Civil Rights Division of the
U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) and OCR. According to the jointly issued Dear Colleague Letter, a school's Title IX obligation
to ensure nondiscrimination on the basis of sex requires it to provide transgender students equal access to educational programs
and activities, even in circumstances in which other students, parents/guardians, or community members raise objections or
concerns. In addition, in May 2016, the U.S. Department of Education's Office of Elementary and Secondary Education
published Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students as a resource to complement the
jointly issued Dear Colleague Letter.  Though OCR's enforcement of the May 2016 Dear Colleague Letter has been enjoined by
a federal court, many of the recommended practices have already been adopted by California school districts to reflect state law
protecting the rights of transgender students. The guidelines address certain issues and circumstances that may arise in relation
to the needs of transgender and gender-nonconforming students, and are by no means exhaustive.  Consequently, each instance
or situation should be addressed based on its particular circumstances to ensure that the safety, privacy, and other concerns of
all students involved are appropriately addressed. For more information on the rights of transgender students, see CSBA's policy
brief Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students and its
Final Guidance Regarding Transgender Students, Privacy, and Facilities.

Gender identity of a student means the student's gender-related identity, appearance, or behavior as
determined from the student's internal sense of his/her gender, whether or not that gender-related identity,
appearance, or behavior is different from that traditionally associated with the student's physiology or
assigned sex at birth.

Gender expression means a student's gender-related appearance and behavior, whether stereotypically
associated with the student's assigned sex at birth.  (Education Code 210.7)

Gender transition refers to the process in which a student changes from living and identifying as the sex
assigned to the student at birth to living and identifying as the sex that corresponds to the student's gender
identity.

Gender-nonconforming student means a student whose gender expression differs from stereotypical
expectations.

Transgender student means a student whose gender identity is different from the gender he/she was assigned
at birth.

Regardless of whether they are sexual in nature, acts of verbal, nonverbal, or physical aggression,
intimidation, or hostility that are based on sex, gender identity, or gender expression, regardless of whether
they are sexual in nature, where the act has or that have the purpose or effect of havingproducing a negative
impact on the student's academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational
environment are prohibited under state and federal law.. Examples of types of conduct which are prohibited
in the district and which may constitute gender-based harassment include, but are not limited to:

1. Refusing to address a student by a name and the pronouns consistent with his/her gender identity

2. Disciplining or disparaging a transgender student because hisor excluding him/her mannerisms,
hairstyle, or style of dress correspond tofrom participating in activities for behavior or appearance
that is consistent with his/her gender identity, or a non-transgender student because his/heR
mannerisms, hairstyle, or style of dress do that does not conform to stereotypes for his/her
genderstereotypical notions of masculinity or are perceivedfemininity, as indicative of the other
sexapplicable



6

3. Blocking a student's entry to the bathroom that corresponds to his/her gender identity because the
student is transgender or gender-nonconforming

4. Taunting a student because he/she participates in an athletic activity more typically favored by a
student of the other sex

5. Revealing a student's transgender status to individuals who do not have a legitimate need for the
information, without the student's consent

6. Use of gender-specific slurs

7. Physical assault of a student motivated by hostility toward him/her because of his/her gender, gender
identity, or gender expression

The district's uniform complaint procedures (AR 1312.3) shall be used to report and resolve complaints
alleging discrimination against transgender and gender-nonconforming students.

Examples of bases for complaints include, but are not limited to, the above list, as well as improper rejection
by the district of a student's asserted gender identity, denial of access to facilities that correspond with a
student's gender identity, improper disclosure of a student's transgender status, discriminatory enforcement
of a dress code, and other instances of gender-based harassment.

To ensure that transgender and gender-nonconforming students are afforded the same rights, benefits, and
protections provided to all students by law and Board policy, the district shall address each situation on a
case-by-case basis, in accordance with the following guidelines:

1. Right to privacy: A student's transgender or gender-nonconforming status is his/her private
information and the district willshall only disclose the information to others with the student's prior
written consent, except when the disclosure is otherwise required by law or when the district has
compelling evidence that disclosure is necessary to preserve the student's physical or mental well-
being. In the latter instanceany case, the district shall limitonly allow disclosure of a student's
personally identifiable information to individuals reasonably believedemployees with a legitimate
educational interest as determined by the district pursuant to be able to protect the student's well-
being.34 CFR 99.31. Any district employee to whom a student discloses his/herstudent's transgender
or gender-nonconforming status is disclosed shall keep the student's information confidential. When
disclosure of a student's gender identity is made to a district employee by a student, the employee
shall seek the student's permission to notify the compliance officer.  If the student refuses to give
permission, the employee shall keep the student's information confidential, unless he/she is required
to disclose or report the student's information pursuant to this procedure, and shall inform the student
that honoring the student's request may limit the district's ability to meet the student's needs related
to his/her status as a transgender or gender-nonconforming student. If the student permits the
employee to notify the compliance officer, the employee shall do so within three school days.

As appropriate given the physical, emotional, and other significant risks to the student student's need
for support, the compliance officer may consider discussing discuss with the student any need to
disclose the student's transgender or gender-nonconformity status or gender identity or gender
expression to his/her parents/guardians and/or others, including other students, teacher(s), or other
adults on campus. The district shall offer support services, such as counseling, to students who wish
to inform their parents/guardians of their status and desire assistance in doing so.



7

(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records)
(cf. 3580 - District Records)

Note:  In the May 2016 Dear Colleague Letter, DOJ and OCR noted that there is no medical diagnosis or treatment requirement
that students must meet as a prerequisite to being treated consistent with their gender identity.

2. Determining a Student's Gender Identity: The compliance officer shall accept the student's assertion
of his/her gender identity and begin to treat the student consistent with his/her gender identity unless
district personnel present a credible and supportable basis for believing that the student's assertion is
for an improper purpose. In such a case, the compliance officer shall document the improper purpose
and, within seven school days of receiving notification of the student's assertion, shall provide a
written response to the student and, if appropriate, to his/her parents/guardians.

3. Addressing a Student's Transition Needs: The compliance officer shall arrange a meeting with the
student and, if appropriate, his/her parents/guardians to identify potential issues, including transition-
related issues, and to develop strategies for addressing themensuring that the student's access to
education programs and activities is maintained. The meeting shall discuss the transgender or gender-
nonconforming student's rights and how those rights may affect and be affected by the rights of other
students and shall address specific subjects related to the student's access to facilities and to academic
or educational support programs, services, or activities, including, but not limited to, sports and other
competitive endeavors. In addition, the compliance officer shall identify specific school site
employee(s) to whom the student may report any problem related to his/her status as a transgender or
gender-nonconforming individual, so that prompt action could be taken to address it. Alternatively,
if appropriate and desired by the student, the school may form a support team for the student that will
meet periodically to assess whether the student's arrangements for the student are meeting his/her
educational needs and providing equal access to programs and activities, educate appropriate staff
about the student's transition, and serve as a resource to the student to better protect the student from
gender-based discrimination.

4. Accessibility to Sex-Segregated Facilities, Programs, and Activities: TheWhen the district may
maintainmaintains sex-segregated facilities, such as restrooms and locker rooms, andor offers sex-
segregated programs and activities, such as physical education classes, intermural sports, and
interscholastic athletic programs.  A student, students shall be entitledpermitted to access facilities
and participate in programs and activities consistent with his/hertheir gender identity. If available and
requested by any student, regardless of the underlying reason, the district shall offer options toTo
address any student's privacy concerns in using sex-segregated facilities, the district shall offer
available options such as a gender-neutral or single-use restroom or changing area, a bathroom stall
with a door, an area in the locker room separated by a curtain or screen, access to a staff member's
office, or use of the locker room before or after the other students. However, the district shall not
require a student to utilize these options because he/she is transgender or gender-nonconforming. In
addition, a student shall be permitted to participate in accordance with his/her gender identity in other
circumstances where students are separated by gender, such as for class discussions, yearbook
pictures, and field trips. A student's right to participate in a sex-segregated activity in accordance with
his/her gender identity shall not render invalid or inapplicable any other eligibility rule established
for participation in the activity.

(cf. 6145 - Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)
(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips)



8

(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan)

Note:  5 CCR 432 requires the legal name, sex, date of birth, etc., of a student to be maintained as part of the student's
"mandatory permanent student records" but does not prohibit keeping of other records, such as a student's preferred name, as
part of the student's "permitted student records."

5. Student Records:  A student's legal name or gender as entered on the mandatory student record
required pursuant to 5 CCR 432 shall only be changed pursuant to a court order.  However, at the
written request of a student or, if appropriate, his/her parents/guardians, the district shall use the
student's preferred name and pronouns consistent with his/her gender identity on all other district-
related documents. Such preferred name may be added to the student's record and official documents
as permitted by law.

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)

6. Names and Pronouns: If a student so chooses, district personnel shall be required to address the
student by a name and the pronouns consistent with his/her gender identity, without the necessity of
a court order or a change to his/her official district record.  However, inadvertent slips or honest
mistakes by district personnel in the use of the student's name and/or consistent pronouns shall not
constitute a violation of this administrative regulation or the accompanying district policy.

7. Uniforms/Dress Code:  A student has the right to dress in a manner consistent with his/her gender
identity, subject to any dress code adopted on a school site.

(cf. 5132 - Dress Code)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted:  December 9, 2014 Loyalton, California
revised:  October 11, 2016



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy
Nondiscrimination/Harassment

Students BP 5145.7(a)

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

Note: Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 USC 1681-1688) prohibits discrimination based on sex by recipients
of federal financial assistance.  School districts are responsible under Title IX and the regulations for the issuance of a policy
against sex discrimination (34 CFR 106.8). Sexual harassment is a form of sex discrimination under Title IX and can deny or
limit a student's ability to participate in or receive education benefits, services, or opportunities on the basis of that student's sex.
A district can be held liable for civil damages for the sexual harassment of students pursuant to Title IX and/or Education Code
220, if the district is found to have been "deliberately indifferent" in its response to known sexual harassment.  In Davis v. Monroe
County Board of Education, the U.S. Supreme Court held that a district would be deliberately indifferent if (1) the harasser and
the context in which the sexual harassment occurred were within the district's control; (2) the harassment was so severe, pervasive,
and objectively offensive that it deprived a student of access to educational opportunities or benefits provided by the district; (3)
the district had actual knowledge of the harassment; and (4) the district's conduct was unreasonable considering the surrounding
circumstances. This standard was applied by an appellate court in Donovan v. Poway US D based on Ed Code 220.
In addition to filing a private civil lawsuit, an alleged victim of sexual harassment may file a complaint with the California
Department of Education (CDE) and/or the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR), the federal agency
responsible for administrative enforcement of federal laws and regulations that prohibit discrimination in programs and activities
that receive federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Education.  OCR applies a different standard than the
"deliberate indifference" standard when addressing complaints against a district.  Under OCR's enforcement standards, a district
may be held to be in violation when a student is subjected to harassing conduct by another student, an employee, or a third party,
and (1) the district knows or should know about the harassment, (2) the harassment is sufficiently serious as to create a hostile
educational environment for the student, and (3) the district failed to take appropriate responsive actions. In other words, while
a district is not responsible for the conduct of the other student or the third party, it may be liable for failing to respond adequately
once it has notice.  However, if a student is sexually harassed by an employee who was acting in the context of his/her job
responsibilities, the district may be in violation of Title IX whether or not it has notice.
In April 2011, OCR issued its Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence to supplement its January 2001 Revised Sexual
Harassment Guidance on federal Title IX requirements as they pertain to sexual harassment.  In the letter, OCR clarifies that
sexual violence, including rape, sexual assault, sexual battery, and sexual coercion, is a form of sexual harassment that must be
addressed by districts using the same procedures used to address other forms of sexual harassment, such as unwelcome sexual
advances.
CSBA staff met with representatives from CDE and OCR to discuss this policy and the accompanying regulation as they relate
to the uniform complaint procedure (UCP) requirements.  As a result, the sample policy and regulation have been drafted to go
beyond the minimal requirements under California's UCP laws and regulations in an attempt to address issues and concerns
raised by CDE and OCR.  While CDE and OCR have not approved or signed off on them, CSBA believes that the additional
details provided herein may help school districts and county offices of education during any compliance check by CDE or in the
event that a CDE or OCR investigation occurs.

The Governing Board of Education desires is committed to provide maintaining a safe school environment
that allows all students equal access and opportunities in the district's academic and other educational support
programs, services, and activities. is free from harassment and discrimination. The Board prohibits, at any
district school or at school activity, unlawful discrimination, including discriminatory-sponsored or school-
related activities, sexual harassment, intimidation, and bullying of targeted at any student based on the student's
actual or perceivedby anyone. The Board also prohibits retaliatory behavior or action against any person who
reports, files a complaint or testifies about, or otherwise supports a complainant in alleging sexual harassment.
The district strongly encourages any student who feels that he/she is being or has been sexually harassed on
school grounds or at a school.  (Education Code 234.1)-sponsored or school-related activity by another student
or an adult who has experienced off-campus sexual harassment that has a continuing effect on campus to
immediately contact his/her teacher, the principal, or any other available school employee. Any employee who
receives a report or observes an incident of sexual harassment shall notify the principal or a district compliance



2

officer. Once notified, the principal or compliance officer shall take the steps to investigate and address the
allegation, as specified in the accompanying administrative regulation.

(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction)

Note:  Government Code 12950.1 requires any district with 50 or more employees to provide two hours of sexual harassment
training and education to supervisory employees once every two years. See AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment.
In addition, in its April 2011 Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, OCR underlies the importance of training in preventing
and responding to sexual harassment and encourages districts to provide training to all segments of the school community.

The Superintendent or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce the district's sexual harassment
policy.

Instruction/Information

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all district students receive age-appropriate information on
sexual harassment. Such instruction and information shall include:

1. What acts and behavior constitute sexual harassment, including the fact that sexual harassment could
occur between people of the same sex and could involve sexual violence

2. A clear message that students do not have to endure sexual harassment under any circumstance

3. Encouragement to report observed incidents of sexual harassment even where the alleged victim of the
harassment has not complained

Note: In its April 2011 Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, OCR acknowledges that, where sexual harassment or violence
occurs in the context of other possible rule violations, students may be reluctant to report sexual harassment or violence. As
such, item #4 below clarifies that any other rule violation will be addressed separately from the sexual harassment complaint in
order to encourage students to report the harassment.

4. A clear message that student safety is the district's primary concern, and that any separate rule violation
involving an alleged victim or any other person reporting a sexual harassment incident will be
addressed separately and will not affect the manner in which the sexual harassment complaint will be
received, investigated, or resolved

5. A clear message that, regardless of a complainant's noncompliance with the writing, timeline, or other
formal filing requirements, every sexual harassment allegation that involves a student, whether as the
complainant, respondent, or victim of the harassment, shall be investigated and prompt action shall be
taken to stop any harassment, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effect on students

6. Information about the district's procedure for investigating complaints and the person(s) to whom a
report of sexual harassment should be made



3

7. Information about the rights of students and parents/guardians to file a civil or criminal complaint, as
applicable, including the right to file a civil or criminal complaint while the district investigation of a
sexual harassment complaint continues

8. A clear message that, when needed, the district will take interim measures to ensure a safe school
environment for a student who is the complainant or victim of sexual harassment and/or other students
during an investigation and that, to the extent possible, when such interim measures are taken, they
shall not disadvantage the complainant or victim of the alleged harassment

Complaint Process and Disciplinary Actions

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 231.5, the district's policy must contain information on where to obtain a specific procedure
for reporting incidents of sexual harassment and pursuing available remedies.  In addition, 34 CFR 106.8 requires a district to
adopt and publish a complaint procedure providing for a prompt and equitable resolution of student complaints alleging sexual
harassment. To avoid confusion that may arise from having a multiplicity of complaint processes for resolving a variety of student
complaints, it is recommended that districts use the UCP to investigate and resolve sexual harassment complaints involving
students.  See AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures for details of these procedures.

Sexual harassment complaints by and against students shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with
law and district procedures specified in AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures. Principals are responsible
for notifying students and parents/guardians that complaints of sexual harassment can be filed under AR 1312.3
and where to obtain a copy of the procedures.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 48900.2, a student in grades 4-12 may be suspended and/or expelled from school for sexual
harassment.  Education Code 48900.2 also requires the sexual harassment, when considered from the perspective of a reasonable
person of the same gender as the alleged victim, to be sufficiently severe or pervasive as to have a negative impact upon the
alleged victim's academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment for the alleged
victim. Under OCR's 2001 Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance interpreting Title IX, a hostile environment is created when
the conduct is sufficiently serious that it denies or limits a student's ability to participate in or benefit from the school's program
based on sex.  OCR considers the conduct from both the subjective perspective of the individual who was harassed and from the
perspective of a reasonable person with the same characteristics as the alleged victim. Districts should also note that Education
Code 48915(c) requires the Superintendent or designee to recommend expulsion for any student, irrespective of grade, who
commits sexual assault or battery as defined in the Penal Code. See AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process.

Upon investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any student found to have engaged in sexual harassment
or sexual violence in violation of this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action. For students in grades 4-
12, disciplinary action may include suspension and/or expulsion, provided that, in imposing such discipline,
the entire circumstances of the incident(s) shall be taken into account.

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Upon investigation of a sexual harassment complaint, any employee found to have engaged in sexual
harassment or sexual violence toward any student shall have his/her employment terminated in accordance
with law and the applicable collective bargaining agreement.

(cf. 4117.7 - Employment Status Report)
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

Record-Keeping



4

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain a record of all reported cases of sexual harassment to enable
the district to monitor, address, and prevent repetitive harassing behavior in district schools.
(3580 - District Records)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex
48900 Grounds for suspension or expulsion
48900.2  Additional grounds for suspension or expulsion; sexual harassment
48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct
48980  Notice at beginning of term
CIVIL CODE
51.9 Liability for sexual harassment; business, service and professional relationships
1714.1  Liability of parents/guardians for willful misconduct of minor
PENALGOVERNMENT CODE
12950.1  Sexual harassment training
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
4600-4687 Uniform complaint procedures
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1221 Application of laws
1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
1681-1688  Title IX, discrimination
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
1983  Civil action for deprivation of rights
2000d-2000d-7 Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy
106.1-106.71 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs
COURT DECISIONS
Donovan v. Poway Unified School District, (2008) 167 Cal.App.4th 567
Flores v. Morgan Hill Unified School District, (2003), 9th Cir.) 324 F.3d 1130
Reese v. Jefferson School District, (2001, 9th Cir.) 208 F.3d 736
Davis v. Monroe County Board of Education, (1999) 526 U.S. 629
Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 524 U.S. 274
Oona by Kate S. v. McCaffrey, (1998, 9th Cir.) 143 F.3d 473
Doe v. Petaluma City School District, (1995, 9th Cir.) 54 F.3d 1447

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Providing a Safe, Nondiscriminatory School Environment for Transgender and Gender-Nonconforming Students, Policy Brief,
February 2014
Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter: Transgender Students, May 2016
Examples of Policies and Emerging Practices for Supporting Transgender Students, May 2016
Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015
Questions and Answers on Title IX and Sexual Violence, April 2014
Dear Colleague Letter:  Sexual Violence, April 4, 2011
Sexual Harassment and Bullying, October 2010:  It's Not Academic, September 2008
Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, or Third Parties, January 2001
WEB SI TES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: September 11, 2012
revised:  June 19, 2013 Loyalton, California
revised:  March 11, 2014
revised:  December 9, 2014
revised:  October 11, 2016

http://www.csba.org
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

AR 5145.7
Students

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The district designates the following individual(s) as the responsible employee(s) to coordinate its efforts to
comply with Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 and California Education Code 234.1, as well as
to investigate and resolve sexual harassment complaints under AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures.
The coordinator/compliance officer(s) may be contacted at:

Superintendent
109 Beckwith Road
P.O.Box 955
Loyalton, CA, 96118
530 993-1660 Ext *837
mgrant@spjusd.org

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, unwanted requests
for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature made against another
person of the same or opposite sex in the educational setting, under any of the following conditions:  (Education
Code 212.5; 5 CCR 4916)

1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of a student's academic
status or progress.

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by a student is used as the basis for academic decisions
affecting the student.

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the student's academic
performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment.

4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the student is used as the basis for any decision affecting
the student regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available at or through any
district program or activity.

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate)
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)
(cf. 6142.1 - Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Instruction)

Examples of types of conduct which are prohibited in the district and which may constitute sexual harassment
include, but are not limited to:

1. Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations, or propositions

2. Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or sexually degrading
descriptions

mailto:mgrant@spjusd.org


2

3. Graphic verbal comments about an individual's body or overly personal conversation

4. Sexual jokes, derogatory posters, notes, stories, cartoons, drawings, pictures, obscene gestures, or
computer-generated images of a sexual nature

5. Spreading sexual rumors

6. Teasing or sexual remarks about students enrolled in a predominantly single-sex class

7. Massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or brushing the body

8. Touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way

9. Impeding or blocking movements or any physical interference with school activities when directed at
an individual on the basis of sex

10. Displaying sexually suggestive objects

11. Sexual assault, sexual battery, or sexual coercion

12. Electronic communications containing comments, words, or images described above

Any prohibited conduct that occurs off campus or outside of school-related or school-sponsored programs or
activities will be regarded as sexual harassment in violation of district policy if it has a continuing effect on or
creates a hostile school environment for the complainant or victim of the conduct.

Reporting Process and Complaint Investigation and Resolution

Any student who believes that he/she has been subjected to sexual harassment by another student, an employee,
or a third party or who has witnessed sexual harassment is strongly encouraged to report the incident to his/her
teacher, the principal, or any other available school employee. Within one school day of receiving such a
report, the school employee shall forward the report to the principal or the district's compliance officer
identified in AR 1312.3. In addition, any school employee who observes an incident of sexual harassment
involving a student shall, within one school day, report his/her observation to the principal or a district
compliance officer. The employee shall take these actions, whether or not the alleged victim files a complaint.

When a report or complaint of sexual harassment involves off-campus conduct, the principal shall assess
whether the conduct may create or contribute to the creation of a hostile school environment. If he/she
determines that a hostile environment may be created, the complaint shall be investigated and resolved in the
same manner as if the prohibited conduct occurred at school.

When a verbal or informal report of sexual harassment is submitted, the principal or compliance officer or
designee shall inform the student or parent/guardian of the right to file a formal written complaint in accordance
with the district's uniform complaint procedures. Regardless of whether a formal complaint is filed, the
principal or compliance officer shall take steps to investigate the allegations and, if sexual harassment is found,
shall take prompt action to stop it, prevent recurrence, and address any continuing effects.

If a complaint of sexual harassment is initially submitted to the principal, he/she shall, within two school days,
forward the report to the compliance officer to initiate investigation of the complaint.  The compliance officer



3

shall contact the complainant and investigate and resolve the complaint in accordance with law and district
procedures specified in AR 1312.3.

In investigating a sexual harassment complaint, evidence of past sexual relationships of the victim shall not be
considered, except to the extent that such evidence may relate to the victim's prior relationship with the
respondent.

In any case of sexual harassment involving the principal, compliance officer, or any other person to whom the
incident would ordinarily be reported or filed, the report may instead be submitted to the Superintendent or
designee or the president of the Board of Education who shall determine who will investigate the complaint.
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting)

Confidentiality

All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential except as necessary to carry out
the investigation or take other subsequent necessary action.  (5 CCR 4964)

Note: The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 USC 1232g; 34 CFR 99.1-99.67) protects student privacy,
including student records such as the description of the corrective actions taken in response to a complaint of sexual harassment.
Thus, districts are advised to consult legal counsel in determining what information must be included in the final written decision
sent to the complainant and what information must not be included.
In determining what information to include and not include in the final written decision for complaints regarding sexual
harassment, districts should be aware that current law (20 USC 1221) states that nothing in
FERPA is to "be construed to affect the applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title IX of Education
Amendments of 1972, Title V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age Discrimination Act, or other statutes prohibiting
discrimination, to any applicable program." OCR has interpreted these provisions to mean that FERPA permits a district to
disclose to a student, who was subjected to sexual harassment, certain information about the sanctions imposed upon the offender
when the sanctions directly relate to the student. For instance, if properly remedying the impact of sexual harassment would
require disclosing to the alleged victim certain information on how the district disciplined the alleged student offender (e.g., a
stay away order), OCR would require the district to disclose that information.
OCR's Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance and 2011 Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual Violence, as well the FAQs issued in April
2014, indicate that if a complainant in a sexual harassment case requests that his/her name or that of the victim not be revealed
to the alleged perpetrator or asks that the complaint not be pursued, the district should first inform the complainant that honoring
the request may limit its ability to respond and pursue disciplinary action against the alleged perpetrator. However, in all
instances, the district must continue to ensure that it provides a safe and nondiscriminatory environment for all students.  If there
is a high risk of harm to the complainant or others (e.g., if the district has information that the alleged perpetrator is a repeat
offender) and the district cannot respond adequately to the risk without disclosing the complainant's identity, then in such limited
circumstances the district may be required to investigate the incident and disclose the complainant's identity. If the district
determines that it will respect the confidentiality request, it should nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and
respond to the complaint.  Such steps may include limited investigative activities that do not require the district to reveal the
complainant's identity; providing services to the complainant, such as counseling services; providing increased monitoring,
supervision, or security at locations or activities where the misconduct occurred; providing training and education materials for
students and employees; or changing and publicizing the district's policies on sexual violence.

However, when a complainant or victim of sexual harassment notifies the district of the harassment but
requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her that the request may limit the district's
ability to investigate the harassment or take other necessary action. When honoring a request for confidentiality,
the district will nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and respond to the complaint consistent
with the request.

When a complainant or victim of sexual harassment notifies the district of the harassment but requests that the
district not pursue an investigation, the district will determine whether or not it can honor such a request while
still providing a safe and nondiscriminatory environment for all students.
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 5125 - Student Records)



4

Response Pending Investigation

Note:  The following reporting process may be revised to reflect district practice.  In its April 2011 Dear Colleague Letter: Sexual
Violence, OCR cautions that districts may have an obligation to respond to notice of sexual harassment of students which occurs
off school grounds or outside school-sponsored or school-related programs or activities, since the sexual harassment may still
create a hostile environment at school.

When an incident of sexual harassment is reported, the principal or designee, in consultation with the
compliance officer, shall determine whether interim measures are necessary pending the results of the
investigation. The principal/designee or compliance officer shall take immediate measures necessary to stop
the harassment and protect students and/or ensure their access to the educational program. SuchTo the extent
possible, such interim measures shall not disadvantage the complainant or victim of the alleged harassment.
Interim measures may include placing the individuals involved in separate classes or transferring a student to
a class taught by a different teacher, in accordance with law and Board policy. The school should notify the
individual who was harassed of his/her options to avoid contact with the alleged harasser and allow the
complainant to change academic and extracurricular arrangements as appropriate. The school should also
ensure that the complainant is aware of the resources and assistance, such as counseling, that are available to
him/her. As appropriate, such actions shall be considered even when a student chooses to not file a formal
complaint or the sexual harassment occurs off school grounds or outside school-sponsored or school-related
programs or activities.

Notifications

A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and regulation shall:

1. Be included in the notifications that are sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year
(Education Code 48980; 5 CCR 4917)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

2. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building or other area where notices
of district rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct are posted, including school web
sites (Education Code 231.5)

A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and regulation shall be posted on district and school
web sites and, when available, on district-supported social media.

(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites)
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)

3. Be provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new students at the beginning of each
quarter, semester, or summer session (Education Code 231.5)

4. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's comprehensive rules,
regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct (Education Code 231.5)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville,California
revised:  August 9, 2011
revised:  August 14, 2012 Loyalton, California
revised:  December 9, 2014
revised:  October 11, 2016


	01_10_11_16_SCOE_Agenda.pdf
	2_Sierra COE 2016-17 LCAP Approval Letter.pdf
	3_SCOE Sept 2016 ObjSumm.pdf
	4_Budget Cert Letter from CDE.pdf
	5_9-13-16 SCOE Minutes.pdf
	6_SCOE Sept 2016 Checks.pdf
	7_5121 BP Grades_Final.pdf
	8_5121 AR_Grades_Final.pdf
	9_16-005 Instructional Materials_16-17_SCOE.pdf
	10_16-006 AirMedCare Network_SCOE.pdf
	11_Policy Guidesheet 10_16.pdf
	12_Policies_Oct2016.pdf

